GRAND RMT COUNTY
e o e e P

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION. 5HOW & SPORIS FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, June 23, 2004
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Board Room, 3™ Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
L Call to Order
Convention
Arena IL. Approval of May 26, 2004 Minutes Action
uthori
Autherty III. DeVos Place Construction Update — Erhardt/Hunt Information
John Logie, .
Chairman IV. Committee Reports
tew Chamberlin . . .
Clif Charles a. Building Committee Information
Gary Mclnerney b. Operations Committee
Steven Heacock 1. CVB Update Information
Birgit Klohs c. Finance Committee
Joseph Tomaselli i Approval of Disbursements Action
il Approval of SMG Financial Statements Action
iii. Approval of CAA Financial Statement Action
iv. Discussion Concerning FY 2005 Budget - Information
Supplemental Materials
V. FY2005 Operating & Capital Budgets Action
V. Trademark License Agreement Action
V1. SMG Report Information
i. Facilities Calendars

VII. Public Comment

VIII. Next Meeting Date: August 25, 2004. The July 28 meeting is canceled.

Adjournment
DEVOSPLACE”
DeVos Place
st 303 Monroe Ave. NW
| 49503 Grand Rapids, Ml 495

616.742.6

03
500
Fax 616.742.6590




Item II

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Call to Order

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, May 26, 2004

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m. Chairman Logie presided and
Secretary Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance

Members Present: John Logie, Chairman
Lew Chamberlin
Clif Charles
Steve Heacock
Birgit Klohs
Gary McInerney

Members Absent: Joseph Tomaselli

Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Joe Erhardt Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Jim Gray CAA Owner Representative
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Steve Miller SMG
William Sewall Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County

II. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the Minutes of the April 28, 2004,
meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

III. DeVos Place® Construction Update

Mr. Sewall and Mr. Erhardt presented a construction update. Mr. Erhardt reported that the perimeter
kitchen walls have been completed, and the floor concrete topping slab has been placed which creates the
drainage slope for the new tile floor. Mechanical, electrical, and plumbing wall and ceiling rough-ins are
substantially complete in the kitchen until the food service equipment arrives. Work on extending the
river walk has been delayed due to the high river level. The construction crew is ready to begin seat
removal in DeVos Hall on Memorial Day weekend. The demolition crew will be working six days a



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 26, 2004 - 2

week to complete the project by September. Mr. Sewall reported that slab on grade in the parking level is
approximately 75% complete. The final structural work in this area is the construction of the parking
entrance ramp and boardroom tower. These foundations are now in process. Lyon Street site
improvements will begin shortly.

Iv. Committee Reports

Building Committee

Mr. Gray reported that the Building Committee took action on one item in May. The Building Committee
recommended approval of Amendment No. 8 to Agreement between Owner and Construction manager on
billable rates per the approved Construction Manager contract.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve Amendment No. 8 to Agreement
Between Owner and Construction Manager. Motion carried unanimously.

Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin reported that the Committee did not meet in May. Mr. Helmstead presented the CVB
marketing report. The CVB has booked a total of 110 conventions to date. Recent bookings include the
Michigan Association of Rehabilitation for 2005 (verbal commitments also for 2007 and 2009), the
American Shetland Pony Association for November 2005, and the Great Lakes Association of
Orthodontists for June 2006. The Michigan Music Teachers Associations has given a verbal
commitment for years 2006-2010. The CVB is interviewing candidates for a permanent Washington,
D.C. sales position. Although the U.S. Green Builders selected Denver for its 2006 convention, it may
reconsider coming to Grand Rapids in future years. Steve Wilson is working with the Community Media
Center to develop a hospitality training video. The CVB is also working on a promotional piece that will
be inserted in The Grand Rapids Press.

Finance Committee
Mr. Heacock presented the Finance Committee report.
a. Approval of Disbursements and Payroll for the Period April 14 — May 14, 2004

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve payment of disbursements and payroll
totaling $6,793,091.29. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Approval of SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for

DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended April 30, 2004. Motion carried
unanimously.

c. Approval of CAA Preliminary Financial Statement Prepared by Beene Garter LLP
Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the Grand Rapids — Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority Financial Statement for the period ended April 30, 2004. Motion carried
unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 26, 2004 - 3

d. FY 2005 Operating & Capital Budget

Mr. Heacock presented the preliminary FY 2005 budgets for review and information. The Finance
Committee spent a substantial amount of time n the number and nature of events forecast for the Van
Andel Arena®. The budget anticipates 23 concerts, which is almost double to venues of comparable size.
While it is obvious that concerts drive the financials because of the high rental and concession income
that they generate, concerts are also potential risk points if they are not well attended. Mr. Machuta stated
that the Arena is expected to perform consistently with the past couple of fiscal years. Gross income at
the Arena is expected to total $4.8 million in fiscal year 2005 with expenses that will reach $3.2 million,
resulting in a surplus of $1.5 million. Mr. Machuta referred to the indirect expense summary. Indirect
expenses associated with running the facility have increased slightly.

Mr. Machuta reported that DeVos Place® is also expected to perform consistently with the past fiscal
year. Gross income at the facility is expected to total $3 million in fiscal year 2005 with expenses that
will reach $4.6 million, resulting in a net operating loss of ($1.6) million. The FY 2005 combined
operating income statement projects a ($60,864) net operating loss. The continuing reduction in financial
operating results is driven primarily by the high level of operating and maintenance expenses to be
incurred at the expanded DeVos Place®. The event summary forecasts a decrease in attendance at the
public shows. The largest revenue-producing event, the Woodworkers’ Expo, is booked every other year
and will not be hosted at the venue until 2006. The budget has an increase of a half-time event
coordinator position. The substantial increase in contract security is due to a new policy that no less than
two security personnel are on staff 24/7. Expenses for repairs and maintenance will also grow as
warranties on equipment expire and new service agreements are entered into.

Mr. White summarized the administrative budget for the CAA. It is projected that the CAA will end FY
2004 will a net assets balance of almost $4.6 million. The FY 2005 budget discloses a moderate
reduction in year-end net assets, and it is projected the CAA will end FY 2005 with a net assets balance of
approximately $4.4 million. Mr. White then presented an analysis of the CAA capital reserve account
over a period of several years. Its purpose is to recommend continuation of the concept, identify an
annual increment to be added based on completion of DeVos Place construction, and identify the financial
capacity of the CAA to fund the account. Originally, the DDA established an annual set-aside of 1% of
the Van Andel Arena® construction costs for capital replacement, with an annual index of 3%. Based on
the recommended FY 2005 budget, the CAA would end the fiscal year with a net assets balance of
$4,369,410. After setting aside a minimum “operating reserve” of $3 million, the CAA is left with a
balance of $1,369,410, which is approximately $1.6 million short of a reasonable funding goal. Since the
reserves are declining and capital replacement needs will continue to increase, the CAA may need to seek
additional outside support within the next 5-10 years for the capital reserve account. Mayor Logie asked
Mr. MacKeigan to look at actual costs and test the 1% rule to determine how realistic it is. Mayor Logie
would like the Finance Committee to consider ways for closing the $1.6 million gap over time.

V. Trademark License Agreement

Mayor Logie was approached by the Collegiate Entrepreneurs’ Organization of Grand Valley State
University for permission to use the names, photos, and likenesses of the Van Andel Arena® and DeVos
Place® for its concept of Grand Rapids Monopoly. The intellectual property would be used on the actual
board game, box, money, and playable tokens. Mayor Logie asked trademark counsel, Norbert Kugele, to
draft a generic trademark agreement, which was included in the agenda packet. Mayor Logie asked for
comments. Mr. Heacock pointed to three issues: (a) as a matter of policy, any license should come to the
Board for approval; (b) a provision regarding royalties should be included; and (c) an obligation may exist
to ask the families to “sub-license” their names. Mayor Logie responded that the CAA most likely owns



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 26, 2004 — 4

the names and, if we proceed, we would certainly inform the families. Mr. Charles suggested that the
CAA should have the opportunity to review the final product and that any license is valid for a specific
time period. Mayor Logie asked the Operations Committee to take the lead in putting together a final
trademark license agreement and developing a standards manual. Mr. MacKeigan stated that SMG
already has a standards manual and some agreements allowing the use of the names and likenesses (e.g.,
permanent advertising agreements).

VL SMG Report
Facilities Calendar
Mr. MacKeigan reported that upcoming events at the Van Andel Arena® include the Famous People
Players, Phil Collins, American Idol, Incubus, and Simon & Garfunkel. DeVos Place® has been closed
until September for renovation of the interior.
VII.  Public Comments
None.
VIII. Next Meeting Date

The next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, June 23, 2004. The July 28 meeting will be canceled.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:55 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



Building Committee Report
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

June 23, 2004

GRAND CENTER

The primary focus for May remained the Kitchen Area. The perimeter kitchen walls have been painted, and
the floor concrete topping slab has been placed.

The kitchen ceiling metal joist framing system with plywood decking for storage, is in process, and has
progtessed to the point that the finished grid system has begun.

Mechanical, electrical and plumbing wall and ceiling rough-ins are substantially complete in the kitchen until
the food setvice equipment atrives.

Demolition of the Grand Plaza Hotel Bridge Lobby has been completed and is being replaced by new Skyway
Level connection structural steel. Likewise, a section of the old Monroe street overlook has been enclosed as
the final link between DeVos Hall and all Skyway locations to the south. Preparations are underway to
connect the skywalk to the River City Building.

The Meeting Room and Rehearsal Room are being prepared for wall finishes and new ceilings in the old
Grand Hall Area. Face brick on the east elevation is approximately 80% complete.

BALL ROOM
95% of the new structural steel has been erected and detailed along with the associated slab on deck. Spray

fireproofing of the required members is near completion in areas that the mechanical systems need to be
installed.

Slab on grade in the Parking Level is approximately 75% complete.

The final structural work in this area is the construction of the Parking Entrance Ramp and Board Room
Tower. These foundations are now complete, and the below grade concrete is being backfilled. Preparations
are underway to begin the steel and precast work in eatly June.

Above ceiling piping and ductwork is one of the ptimary activities in the Ballroom and Prefunction spaces.
The ceiling framing crews now are installing the perimeter stud walls that form the actual Ball Rooms, and
bulkhead framing is in process

Installation of the exterior curtainwall system continues, and the north elevation is in place along with glass,
and the west is presently being detailed and is now approximately 50% enclosed.

Page 1



DEVOS HALL
Wotk continues as in past months in the prefunction areas around the Hall. The south side Meeting Level
Rest Rooms are complete, which, when turned over for use, allowed for remodeling of the final set of

restrooms to begin. Corridor carpet, new ceilings and vinyl wall coverings in these areas is complete as well.

Work inside of DeVos Hall currently is planned and staged, ready to begin following seat removal, which got
off to a good start on May 31 as planned.

Page 2



Convention
Arena

Authority

John logie,
Chairman

Llew Chamberlin

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

Steven Heacock

Birgit Klohs

Joseph Tomaselli

ndel Arena
uvlton West
Rapids, MI 49503
42.6600
6

Item IV.c.i.

GRAND RMT COUNTY
A R s R e
B e e

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENTY CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORITS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
From: Susan Waddell
Administrative Manager
Date: June 11, 2004
Subject: Monthly Disbursements Report

Attached for your review are the lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures for the period are summarized below.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
May 28, 2004 $ 74,312.07 $ 82,645.90
June 14, 2004 78,784.43 3,575,796.82
Payroll date - 05/14/04 2,041.13 --
Payroll date - 05/28/04 1,895.33 --
Payroll date — 06/11/04 1.851.70 --
Disbursements from C/AA Funds $ 158,884.66 $3,658,442.72

There were no disbursements from the C/AA’s retainage account.

Total disbursements for the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
during the period May 14 through June 14, 2004, were $3,817,327.38.

Please call me at 742-6194 if you need additional information.

Attachments

PEVOSPLACE"
DeVos Pla

303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503
616.742.6500

Fax 616.742.6590




$00Z8090 MwWs Six poAedoisaurees

sasuadxa buyelsado  uoansuod-uoN = O

sasuadxa pajejas UoINIISUOD JajUB)) UOHUDALOD = )

spund Auoyiny wouj JuswAed 10} pasSasoid SAJNOAU| |B)0] G2 185 PSI°E $
JuNno2dy Bunesadp wouy JuswAhed 1o) paiugng SadIOAU| [B)O1 €¥'$8L'8L §
JUNOD2Y UCKINJISUOD WO JUSWAR JO) PARILIGNS SIDIOAU] [€J0L  Z8'962°GLG'C $

VVO 0} PajiWiqns S3dI0AU| - [8}01-NS Er'¥8L 8L $

Bupesw 00z ‘9z A 1o syoeus/sabelonsg 0119101 1519 ¥002/92/50 8972 801G 8300 J0H pidey 0
sadojaaul 0Z1910L 100-/8600S  $00Z/LE/SO  0S'8I Jodag 820 0
#00Z Aey - seotnies wes)s HemdIS 0Ze9LoL $0G50-00¥0S  Y00Z/LE/SO  LO'ELE SHIOA oNgnd Jo ydeq Auno) Jusyy o]
#002 AeN - s901AI9S Weas J8jua) pueId) 0ZEILOL #0S0-00/1S  P00Z/LE/SO0  82°08L°LL $HIOM 1iand Jo 1dag Auno) juasy| o]
$00Z Aep\ - seainuss wes)s eualy 0ZEOLOL $0S0-LGEGS  YO0Z/LE/SO  VOPLS'OL SHIOM 21IGnd Jo 1dag Auno jusy o)
002 Aei\ - S801AI9S WEd)s 828|d SOASQ 02€9101 $060-G8SPS  P00Z/LE/SO vy 06E'OL SHIOM 2liqnd jo ydaq Auno) juay o)
tioiked $0/11/90 104 qUIU0D Safojdwe - 26 s abeuew uwpPY 0CO8LOL 0021190 ¥002/LL/190  00°0SC LGP - uonesodio) Juswainay YINDI o]
lio1Aed 071 L/90 104 SquIu0d sakojdwajiakoldws - vi0p SI6W uWpPY 0SO8LOL 0021190 ¥002Z/L1L/90  00°9¥C V10t - uohjesodiod Juswaisy YINDI 0
¥00Z Ael - 90B|d SOAS(Q 10} SSIIAIDS JIOMBS pue JBleM 0¥ESLOL P0SOVI0LS6  #002/02/S0  1L8°2€2'S Jainseal] A0 spidey pueis o)
002 1dag-unr - ade|d SOASQ 10} S91AI8S Uonoajold alld 0bE9LOL $0S0V08056  $002//2/S0  6S°TL Jainseal] MY spidey puess o
$00Z 1dag-unp - Jsjue) puels) Joj seoines uoioajold and Ove9LOL $0SOVLOLZL  ¥00Z/42/S0  S2OE Jainseas) A0 spidey puels 0
$00z 1das-unr - 18)ua) puels) 1o} seoIAIaS uondalosd and 0pe9LoL ¥0S0V1L602L  $002/22/S0  6€'8P Jainseas) MY spidey puels o)
00z Jdeag-unr - 1)U pueis 10} s8oIAI8s uonoajold alld OvEILOL #0S0V19066  $002/12/S0  SZ0E Jainseas] A1) spidey puesn o
$00Z Ae - BUBIY 10} SBOIAISS JBJEM OPEILOL ¥0S0VOSPES  $002/L2/S0  v1'682 Jainseas] A9 spidey puelo o]
$00Z AeN - Bualy JOJ SIOIAISS JoMES pue Jajlep 0E9LO0L #0SOV1I8EE9  $002/22/S0  69'€55'C Jainseas] AiD spidey puels o)
#002Z '9Z Ae-1Z idy - 82B|d SOARQ 40} SaoInas seb [einjeN 01€9101 0029250 $002/92/S0  0£'900'Z ABisu3z 310 0
$00Z Ae|\ - BUBLY 10} SBOIAISS |BOLID3|T 00SILOL v$0029250  #002/92/S0  ¥S'8LY'62 ABiau3 ssewnsuo) o)
$00Z ABN - dIBMAXS JO4 S82IAIDS |BOLIORIT 00EOLOL SP0029250  ¥00Z/92/S0  20°LSS'L $ ABiau3 siewnsuo) o
YV9 0} papiuigng S8310AU|
Jabeuepy joaloid Aq papiwqng S9210AU| - [BJO1-GNS Z8'96.'S.S'E $
090920¢ €L1L6VA $002/2LISO  0G°LLY'S suoponpoiday ensusap o)
#00Z AeW - seowuss Juswsabeuew 109loid 050920€ #0-50 $002/LE/SO  00°088°0L H sleq ‘siswuwiog o}
#00Z AelN - saojnes aseyd uononsuo) 0L0SZ0S GLEEECO0 ¥00Z/¥0/90  60°086'6 ouj sjueynsuo) Bunsal sjeualey 2
#00Z AeN - seoines Juswsebeuew 1a9(old 0S0920€ #002£090 #002/€0/90  00°0¥9'01 ouj Buginsuo) Aei 4 r 0
Zv # luswked ssaiboid 10) ebeulelay 0205Z0€ HZvr-006 ¥00Z/LE/SO  00°8LL'002 unoooy abeulelsy v/ OX-49 o)
00z Aey - sbunsaw /7 Bupinsuod weyshs Hunoss 090920¢ 11 $00Z/20/90  00°006 SISAg ndag / aild4 Isbulie4 © Auar o)
020520¢ Zr-006 $002/LE€/S0  00'SPL'8EE'S BINJUBA JUIOP Y JUNH - JpJeys] o}
Jieyo Bunyoeys ,eINiO, 090920€ 86.¥€2 ¥002/20/90  €£T¥81 SJUBLIUOIIAUT 82O J8ysnD o)
309 e sjoid ‘Bunyesppompes Jipny 0909Z0E G/SPET ¥002/12/S0  00°2.8 $ SJUSLLUOIIAUT 2014O J8IsN) o)
Jabeuepy 309fold Aq papugng sadioAy]
POAIDI3S SIDIAIBS | ﬁm.__s_uom sjeuajews jo :O_un_._omwn_ 9pod JaquinN ajeq junowy Owham
UNnoY 3JI0AU| 3D10AU)

$00Z ‘vL aunp uo juswAed 10§ po|NPaYOS SSJI0AU| JO 1SIT

ALIJOHLNY YNIHV / NOILNIANOD ALNNOD LNIM - SAIdVE ANVHO



0025250 Mws s|x 0Aedojsauiees

spun4 Ajuoyiny woJj JuswAied 10} passadoid So9I0AU] jelol 16°.56'0SL $

sasuadxs uonongsuod-uou / Bugessdo = O

sasuadxe psjejal UoldNHSU0D = O

E:ooo<mc_uﬁwnoEo._:.._mvE?n_homvoﬁ_:‘_a:mmoo_g:__Eo._.no.m_,n.ﬁa
JUNO22Y LUOIINIISUO WO} JudwAed 10§ payIWINS SAJIOAU| [BJOL 06°SY9°28 ¢

VVD 0} paiwiqng SadI0AU| - [e}0)-aNS  LO'L6S'PL  $
002 Iudy-yosep - 0bo| 8de|d SoA( 81 s8o1nes [e6a  $002/L0/S0 85702 d11 PPN[ @ SSOIOION Joulep . O
002 UoJen - yJewspel) aoe|d SOA(Q a1 sadlnues [eBa  #002/€0/S0 0S'¥0l d71 PPNr g SSOIOION UM O
#002 aunf - Jebeuew aAjeJ)SIulWPE 1o} Sjyoudq ddueInsu|  $00Z/¥1/S0 zeeve uiesH Aoud O
lloaAed 0/82/50 404 qUIUOD d3kojdwa - LGf sabeuew ulwpy  ¥002/82/S0 00052 /G - uonesodio) Juswady VWOl O
Aed $0/82/S0 104 squIU0D dakojdwayaholdwa - L OF ssebeuew ulwpy  $002/82/S0 00'9¥¢ V10¥ - uojjesodio) juswainey YNOI 0
002 14dY 8 YoIB - SJUSAS Joj SaBIBYD SWINBAO SBOIMBS BIIod  Y00Z/6 L/S0 12121 Jaunseas) ANo spidey puess O
002 ‘Sl AeN-0Z INdy-191ua) puRIS) 10} S9OIAISS JOMag pue Jajepy  $002/02/S0 8/°99%°L Jainseal] AN spidey pueio (@)
002 UoJe - s1ejew (essuab 81 saojues [e687  $002/0€/70 00'G9Y O71d Wbup uosudold O
002 AJeNnIqe - 8NUBAY S0JUO JO UOIEOBA 81 S9OIASS [BBaT  $002/0€/¥0 00'6.2 O77d UBUA uosunidIqg 0|
002 MdY - 99.|d SOASQ 10} SBDIAISS [e0108|T  $002Z/90/S0 £6°988'0¢ ABssu3 silswinsuo) O
002 I4dy - 19jus) puelS Joj SIVIAIS [BOLIOBIT  ¥00Z/90/S0 z.°852'ce ABssu3g siswnsuo) O
002 ‘81 AeN papus poliad Joj saolnes Buideasyoog  002/61/S0 00'v.8 $ depenaeuseg O
VVO 0} papiwiqng sadloAu|
Jabeuey 09foud Aq papiwgng Sad10AU| - [BJOL-ANS  06°99E°28$
002 1udy - uoisuedx3 - J18JuUaD pueID  ¥002/81/S0 ¥6'6£2'62 3v anissaiboid 0]
Z 10 Z ‘+00¢ IMdy - sebueyd pajsenbal JsuMO  ¥002/€1/S0 00'008°C 3v aAissalboid o)
210 | %002 I4dy - sebueyd pajsenbal ;oUMO  $00Z/E1L/S0 v0¥SL'L 3v anissaiboid o)
#002 Il1dy - dAejUasaldel sJod)ydIe a)S-UO  $002/EL/S0 00°000'8} 3v anissaiboid 2
002 udy - SIouB)uI |leH SOARQ  $00Z/EL/SO G8'866'L1 3v anissaiboid o]
002 ‘G Aeyy - Burdwnp j10s pajeuiweuod  £002/G1/S0 82205V llypue AiunoD emelo 0
¥002/90/S0 Jo se sabieys auoyd Je|n||9d saAnejuasaidal sJjeumO  +002/1 1L/SO 06°'vZ1 suoieIIUNWWOYD [9)XON o)
002 udy - saojues aseyd uononysuod  $00Z/EL/SO ¥9°262'01 au| syueynsuo) Bunsa | sjeusle )
jew Boyse ‘1sjem 40|02 Ul [e021eYD  $002/52/20 05°Z8Y'e J1abures 0]
JouIgeo Ajunoss ‘W |IUp ‘mes pueg  £00Z/60/20 sroiL'e $ Jebuielo 0
JabBeuepy y09loid Aq papiwgng SO210AU|
paAladal SadIAIas | paldinboe sjeuajew jo uondasaq ajeqd junowy aalked
9JI10AU|

Aoljod4 Buideaypjoog uaung sy Aq pazuoyiny se ‘b00zZ ‘8z A UO JuswAed 10§ paSsSad0id S82I0AU| JO IS
ALRIOHLNY YNINV / NOILNIANOD ALNNOD LN3IX - SAIdVY ANVYHO



Item IV.c.ii.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2004

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 358 11 369 292 77
ATTENDANCE 550,399 17,400 567,799 557,075 10,724
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 1,522,469 44,510 1,566,979 1,406,774 160,205
ANCILLARY REVENUE 857,571 20,682 878,253 792,184 86,069
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 2,380,040 65,192 2,445,232 2,198,958 246,274
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 105,602 5,450 111,052 182,000 (70,948)
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 2,485,642 70,642 2,556,284 2,380,958 175,326
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 117,809 10,688 128,497 112,208 (16,289)
FINANCE 156,470 26,607 183,077 198,711 15,634
MARKETING 49,830 15,483 65,313 76,439 11,126
OPERATIONS 647,207 160,650 807,857 799,347 (8,510)
EVENT SERVICES 560,843 128,827 689,670 748,260 58,590
BOX OFFICE 66,446 12,398 78,844 81,644 2,800
SALES 134,857 6,182 141,039 133,188 (7,851)
OVERHEAD 1,684,986 173,828 1,858,814 1,829,584 (29,230)

TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 3,418,447 534,663 3,953,111 3,979,385 26,270
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (932,806) (464,021) (1,396,827) (1,598,427) 201,596
CAPITAL
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (932,806) (464,021) (1,396,827) (1,598,427) 201,596

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments: ' / /
DeVos Place performed consistent with budget, however, well ahead i

ger d

/ /

of forecasted expectations for the month of May. Thus, the revised General Mand
forecast for the fiscal year has DeVos Place coming in a little over
$200,000 ahead of the original budget.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED May 31, 2004

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2004, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH May May May

Actual Budget FY 2003
Number of Events 55 26 29
Attendance 51,678 39,155 28,859
Direct Event Income $127,475 $87,811 $151,816
Ancillary Income 88,163 23,131 67,564
Other Income 5,742 15,166 11,644
Indirect Expenses (417,802) (332,633) (216,661)
Net Income ($196,423) ($206,425) $14,363
YTD YTD 2004 YTD 2004 YTD 2003

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 358 282 366
Attendance 550,399 539,775 473,124
Direct Event Income $1,522,469 $1,376,789 $1,465,391
Ancillary income 857,571 782,725 539,492
Other Income 105,602 166,826 107,265
Indirect Expenses (3,418,448) (3,655,723) (2,150,875)
Net Income ($932,8086) ($1,329,383) ($38,727)
Less Capital
Net Income after Capital ($932,806) ($1,329,383) ($38,727)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in higher than budget. This was due to hosting a couple more
events than what was budgeted, however, many of the increase from budget was due
to small meetings as it was during April.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in significantly higher than budget. This is mainly due to the
higher than anticipated electrical revenue and equipment rental/audio visual revenue

generated during the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in above budget, however, slightly lower than revised forecasts.
Some of the "down time" projects were put off until June as May ended up busier than

originally anticipated.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/04

----------------- CURRENT - - == === mmmmmmmmmmmmm mmmmmec e oo oo o C YT D —mmmmmmommmeemmme
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 118,067 78,890 142,646 1,440,492 1,301,396 1,418,006
SERVICES INCOME 9,408 - 8,921 9,170 81,977 75,393 47,385
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 127,475 87,811 151,816 1,522,469 1,376,789 1,465,391
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 20,063 10,223 19,137 245,590 198,080 181,443
NOVELTY 2,082 1,250 1,286 18,116 11,500 20,837
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 1,747
ELECTRICAL 26,963 837 3,707 267,016 170,412 26,685
OTHER ANCILLARY 39,054 10,821 43,434 326,848 402,733 308,780
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 88,163 23,131 67,564 857,571 782,725 539,492
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 215,637 110,942 219,380 2,380,039 2,159,514 2,004,883
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 5,742 15,166 11,644 105,602 166,826 107,265
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 221,380 126,108 231,024 2,485,641 2,326,340 2,112,148
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 7,932 9,352 9,949 117,809 102,872 103,283
FINANCE 14,701 16,559 16,422 156,470 182,149 147,645
MARKETING 8,031 6,370 17,024 49,830 70,070 62,563
OPERATIONS 126,945 66,667 37,840 647,207 720,697 380,561
EVENT MANAGEMENT 57,461 68,856 43,529 560,843 679,416 420,885
BOX OFFICE 5,248 6,802 7,796 66,446 74,822 69,215
SALES 11,388 11,100 0 134,857 122,100 0
OVERHEAD 186,097 146,827 84,100 1,684,986 1,703,597 966,724
INDIRECT EXPENSES 417,802 332,533 216,661 3,418,448 3,655,723 2,150,875
NET OPERATING INCOME <196,423> <206,425> 14,363 <932,806> <1,329,383> <38,727>
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE {INCOME) 0 0 0 0 0 4,528
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 0 0 0 4,528
NET INCOME (LOSS) <196,423> <206,425> 14,363 <932,806> <1,329,383> <43,255>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/04

---------------- CURRENT------e==-=--=w=n =-=------------YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 21,610 0 4,012 64,457 0 43,876
Changeover Setup Billed 333 0 0 9,034 0 0
Stagehands Billed 149,887 91,550 103,990 826,585 671,250 689,839
Security Billed 11,211 4,730 8,084 104,196 104,040 84,547
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 14,346 13,500 15,018 123,300 130,225 127,234
Box Office Billed 2,100 1,900 1,800 17,800 18,500 17,850
Ticketing Service Billed 14,541 10,125 24,488 182,801 157,606 149,445
Utilicies Billed 0 0 0 1,575 0 2,200
City Police Fire Billed 2,730 0 1,116 24,092 10,300 16,639
Traffic Control Billed <490> 0 247 31,014 17,595 11,808
EMT Medical Billed 3,488 1,822 2,007 28,347 21,810 21,455
Cleaning Billed 24 0 0 3,169 0 378
Insurance Billed 363 0 0 1,542 0 2,049
Telephone Billed 1,650 975 2,271 31,355 17,340 27,880
Damages Billed 0 [¢] o] 2,976 0 193
Other Production Billed 4,991 0 664 35,547 0 32,738
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 226,785 124,602 163,698 1,487,790 1,148,666 1,228,130
Advertising Expense 21,610 0 4,012 62,877 0 41,358
Contracted Changeover Setup EXxpense 0 0 0 1,274 0 0
Allocated Changeover & Setup Expense 0 0 o] 4,284 0 0
Stagehand Wages 143,653 88,804 102,907 800,230 651,116 669,282
Security Wages 0 4,730 0 ] 104,040 0
Contracted Security Expense 9,814 0 8,084 97,418 0 84,553
Ushers & T/T Wages 10,042 9,450 10,513 85,818 91,158 89,064
Ticket Sellers Wages 727 1,275 1,720 15,988 15,770 20,105
Ticket Service Charge Expense 5,987 4,050 11,301 56,029 60,274 46,350
City Police Fire Expense 2,730 300 1,181 24,092 9,100 16,399
Traffic Control Expense 0 450 1,971 36,013 34,470 29,496
EMT Medical Expense 3,029 1,772 1,427 22,297 21,510 16,216
Production Materials 0 0 o] 492 0 0
Cleaning Wages 0 4,850 10,018 14,146 85,835 130,533
Contracted Cleaning Expense 13,586 0 0 136,211 0 0
Contracted Exhibit Expense 1,073 0 0 7,073 0 ]
Insurance Expense 328 0 251 1,611 0 1,364
Allocated Telephone Expense 450 0 568 7.896 0 5,794
Damage Expense 0 0 0 2,875 0 0
Production Expense 4,346 0 574 29,190 0 30,232
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 217,376 115,681 154,528 1,405,813 1,073,273 1,180,745

NET SERVICE INCOME 9,408 8,921 9,170 81,977 75,393 47,385




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/04

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

2,067,424
860,508
88,391

3,016,322

941,877
324,064
254,898

1,099,928
1,328,362
<932,806>



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/04

————————————————— CURRENT--===---rcsemmmunn cmmcccrcccccc e e e e e YD - e mmmmmmmm e m e mmm e

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR

Salaries Administration 53,741 81,937 66,094 620,795 901, 307 535,547
Part-Time 9,082 11,295 18,693 120,690 124,245 148,506
Wages-Trade 149,393 94,699 122,586 1,043,770 1,041, 689 899,790
Auto Allowance 1,971 0 1,521 21,679 0 16,729
Auto Expense 150 2,27 0 1,650 24,981 0
Taxes & Benefits 50,749 48,252 40,994 429,307 530,772 344,592
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <169,946> <115,718> <144,175> <1,099,847> <1,272,898> <1,070,653>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 95,140 122,736 105,713 1,138,045 1,350,096 874,511
Contracted Security 17,861 18,000 8,950 154,393 117,000 72,024
Contracted Cleaning 12,215 0 0 13,165 0 0
Other Contracted Services 155 183 231 1,393 2,013 2,135
Travel & Entertainment 1,330 1,209 389 11,565 13,299 4,495
Corporate Travel 0 833 0 2,212 9,163 651
Meetings & Conventions 814 2,000 ] 9,843 29,000 9,872
Dues & Subscriptions 794 42 0 5,437 462 953
Employee Training 0 833 0 0 9,163 430
Computer Expense 13,792 5,417 2,751 50,200 59,587 39,601
Professional Fees 1,920 2,625 3,896 46,037 28,875 36,407
Marketing & Advertising 6,407 2,967 2,327 49,726 32,637 14,397
Box Office Expenses <38> 0 13 796 0 604
Small Equipment 0 0 0 2,739 0 0
Trash Removal 2,240 3,360 3,014 14,037 27,520 20,793
Equipment Rental 521 500 277 9,779 5,500 5,600
Snow Removal 0 0 0 481 0 0
Exterminating 375 1,800 375 1,500 12,600 4,050
Construction Costs 626 3,200 3,389 24,791 35,200 5,900
Repairs & Maintenance 46,871 12,084 4,320 109,346 132, 924 68,663
Supplies 45,266 14,667 5,082 171,533 161,337 72,558
Bank Service Charges 1,546 750 764 11,245 8,250 8,877
Insurance 14,841 18,010 12,183 147,832 198, 110 112,063
Licenses & Fees 0 o 0 1,905 0 0
Printing & Stationary [+] 625 0 2,490 6,875 238
Office Supplies 448 625 160 10,594 6,875 5,595
Postage 693 417 15 2,163 4,587 745
MARKET RESEARCH 0 0 0 0 0 2
Parking Expense 1,683 2,000 2,016 20,181 22,000 16,672
Telephone Long Distance 3,516 4,375 2,799 75,933 48,125 32,095
Utilities 129,882 93,750 39,610 1,124,065 1,119,750 538,802
Base Fee 19,354 19,525 18,956 212,898 214,775 208,518
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <450> 0 <568> <7,876> 0 <6,376>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 322,662 209,797 110,948 2,280,403 2,305,627 1,276,365
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 417,802 332,533 216,661 3,418,448 3,655,723 2,150,875



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Security System Upgrades 30,000 30,000 Open
Phone System Upgrades 15,000 15,000 Open
Ice Deck Cover 100,000 96,542 3,458 Complete
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Banquet Room - Interior 25,000 25,000 Open
Total Arena 185,000 96,542 88,458
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 185,000 96,542 88,458
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,438,936  (1,396,827) 42,109 1,349,134
Benchmark 1,599,958  (1,598,427) 1,531 1,206,573
Excess (161,022) 201,600 40,578 142,561
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 232,252 232,252 464,504 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,709,058 2,556,284 7,265,342 7,118,841
Benchmark Revenue 4,335,280 2,380,958 6,716,238 6,237,971
Revenue Excess 373,778 175,326 549,104 880,870
Incentive Fee ** 74,756 35,065 109,821 176,173
Total SMG Management Fee 307,008 267,317 574,325 631,123

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA
-

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2004

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.c.ii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2004

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 121 2 123 133 (10)
ATTENDANCE 682,622 10,000 692,622 752,240 (59,618)
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 1,136,789 15,000 1,151,789 1,235,522 (83,733)
ANCILLARY INCOME 1,489,576 22,500 1,512,076 1,591,062 (78,986)
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 2,626,365 37,500 2,663,865 2,826,584 (162,719)
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,880,193 165,000 2,045,193 1,915,000 130,193
TOTAL INCOME 4,506,558 202,500 4,709,058 4,741,584 (32,526)
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 106,038 7,600 113,638 100,609 (13,029)
FINANCE 146,164 22,747 168,911 190,277 21,366
MARKETING 174,162 30,638 204,800 208,453 3,653
OPERATIONS 1,099,276 112,457 1,211,733 1,177,421 (34,312)
BOX OFFICE 101,238 10,414 111,652 114,363 2,711
LUXURY SEATING 80,940 27,967 108,907 117,992 9,085
SKYWALK ADMIN 37,400 3,218 40,618 36,146 (4,472)
OVERHEAD 1,176,644 133,219 1,309,863 1,332,801 22,938

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 2,921,863 348,260 3,270,122 3,278,062 7,940
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 1,584,695 (145,760) 1,438,936 1,463,522 (24,586)
LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL 1,584,695 (145,760) 1,438,936 1,463,522

Comments:

The Arena performed very well with 4 very solid concerts including the
first of only 12 US Dates for the Eagles, and a second sold out Shania
Twain date this fiscal year. The Arena is still projected to come in
slightly behind budget depending on the outcome of the Simon &
Garfunkle date which is selling well behind expectations.

(24,586)

or of Finance




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED May 31, 2004

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2004, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH May May May

Actual Budget FY 2003
Number of Events 8 9 5
Attendance 50,558 32,800 38,202
Direct Event income $155,826 $61,130 $90,517
Ancillary Income 124,429 75,079 171,704
Other income 193,411 159,584 174,704
Indirect Expenses (293,848) (272,865) (288,487)
Net Income $179,818 $22,928 $148,438
YTD YTD 2004 YTD 2004 YTD 2003

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 121 130 128
Attendance 682,622 733,240 717,264
Direct Event Income $1,136,789 $1,158,891 $1,204,508
Ancillary Income 1,489,576 1,523,162 1,439,181
Other Income 1,880,193 1,755,424 1,767,069
Indirect Expenses (2,921,863) (3,005,860) (2,916,148)
Net Income $1,584,695 $1,431,617 $1,494,611
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in higher than budget due to the hosting of 4 successful concerts
during the month.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income performed very well as per caps for the concerts hosted were all
higher than anticipated.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than budget. Much of the increase was due to
repairs necessary when a drain pipe burst during all the rain at the end of May.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/04

----------------- CURRENT - = = === === mmmmmmm == mmmmmmmmmccceme e YTDmm o mmmmmmmmmmmmmmm m o m
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 135,941 118,500 123,297 1,782,550 1,927,600 1,816,490
SERVICES INCOME 19,885 <57,370> <32,780> <645,761> <768,709> <611,981>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 155,826 61,130 90,517 1,136,789 1,158,891 1,204,508
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 87,387 58,699 124,422 1,239,605 1,245,061 1,169,233
NOVELTY 34,541 16,380 38,691 209,087 235,791 218,774
ELECTRICAL 0 0 1,450 0 0 1,450
OTHER ANCILLARY 2,502 0 7,141 40,883 42,310 49,724
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 124,429 75,079 171,704 1,489,576 1,523,162 1,439,181
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 280,255 136,209 262,220 2,626,365 2,682,053 2,643,689
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 193,411 159,584 174,704 1,880,193 1,755,424 1,767,069
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 473,666 295,793 436,925 4,506,558 4,437,477 4,410,758
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 8,317 8,258 9,578 106,038 92,338 98,446
FINANCE 14,011 15,732 15,150 146,164 174,552 134,397
MARKETING 14,023 17,316 19,829 174,162 193,071 185,751
LUXURY SEATING 6,548 9,832 11,046 80,940 108,152 117,279
OPERATIONS 150,213 98,117 113,535 1,099,276 1,079,287 1,068,084
BOX OFFICE 7,776 9,531 10,894 101,238 103,591 110, 945
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 4,121 3,013 4,346 37,400 33,143 33,648
OVERHEAD 88,840 111,066 104,109 1,176,644 1,221,726 1,167,598
INDIRECT EXPENSES 293,848 272,865 288,487 2,921,863 3,005,860 2,916,148
NET OPERATING INCOME 179,818 22,928 148,438 1,584,695 1,431,617 1,494,611
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 0 0 0 0 203,271
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 0 0 0 203,271
NET INCOME (LOSS! 179,818 22,928 148,438 1,584,695 1,431,617 1,291,340



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/04

---------------- CURRENT------c--------v=s —w-=-----------YEAR TO DATE---------~---
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 35,555 0 14,669 308,749 29,000 334,553
Labor Billed ; 2,700 540 2,160 16,178 14,965 19,192
Changeover Setup Billed 23,641 3,300 19,070 121,690 101,600 139,403
Stagehands Billed 76,028 41,500 68,406 558,529 468,400 519,289
Security Billed 31,815 6,000 25,357 163,392 142,350 170,867
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 16,038 3,500 17,463 112,954 105,400 138,928
Box Office Billed 1,548 400 1,677 8,772 10,550 10,557
Ticketing Service Billed 37,858 13,000 33,383 233,342 205,850 185,690
Utilities Billed 7,500 0 0 14,560 0 0
City Police Fire Billed 2,386 336 3,486 11,522 12,408 17,647
EMT Medical Billed 4,207 600 3,375 22,022 17,350 27,267
Cleaning Billed 14,280 3,600 12,821 93,424 96,650 109,053
Insurance Billed 0 0 0 0 0 455
Group Sales Commissions Billed 0 0 1] 2,763 0 5,565
Telephone Billed 4,030 2,800 3,870 35,649 28,985 31,550
Equipment Rental Billed 0 o 0 0 0 770
Damages Billed 0 ] 1] 350 0 150
Other Production Billed 23,798 15,000 36,690 300,597 170,800 389,793
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 281,384 90,576 242,427 2,004,492 1,404,308 2,100,729
Advertising Expense 36,657 0 14,457 344,047 64,000 314,106
Labor Wages 2,295 918 1,836 14,210 13,638 16,313
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 22,952 10,850 28,583 274,357 253,577 283,439
Stagehand Wages 72,672 47,042 69,774 561,356 513,209 543,620
Contracted Security Expense 32,591 14,100 36,629 269,187 235,770 286,563
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 20,057 17,600 28,520 267,188 290,130 314,667
Ticket Sellers Wages 1,316 0 1,425 7,127 0 8,974
Ticket Sellers P/R Taxes Bene 0 0 0 329 0 0
Ticket Service Charge Expense 31,640 19,000 24,911 214,181 247,750 165,512
City Police Fire Expense 2,386 672 3,486 12,342 15,302 18,423
EMT Medical Expense 3,696 1,794 3,772 33,011 36,519 34,401
Contracted Cleaning Expense 17,006 20,046 25,841 262,349 324,407 319,130
Insurance Expense 0 0 667 30,542 0 12,465
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,209 924 1,290 11,545 7,915 9,521
Production Expense 17,023 15,000 34,016 348,484 170,800 385,576
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 261,499 147,946 275,206 2,650,253 2,173,017 2,712,710

NET SERVICE INCOME 19,885 <57,370> <32,780> <645,761> <768,709> <611,981>



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/04

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

4,131,192
1,798,208
231,343

6,160,743

1,983,734
358,041
347,874

2,048,160

<2,850,000>
686,691
2,001,548
1,584,695



Salaries Administration
Part-Time

Wages-Trade

Auto Allowance

Auto Expense

Taxes & Benefits

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement

TOTAL LABOR COSTS

Contracted Security

Contracted Cleaning

Other Contracted Services

Travel & Entertainment
Corporate Travel
Meetings & Conventions
Dues & Subscriptions
Employee Training
Miscellaneous Expense
Computer Expense
Professional Fees
Marketing & Advertising
Box Office Expenses
Small Equipment

Trash Removal
Equipment Rental
Landscaping
Exterminating

Cleaning

Repairs & Maintenance
Supplies

Bank Service Charges
Rent Expense

Insurance

Licenses & Fees
Printing & Stationary
Office Supplies
Postage

Parking Expense
Telephone Long Distance
Utilities

Base Fee

Common Area Expense

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement

TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES

VAN ANDEL ARENA

INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 05/31/04

————————————————— CURRENT - -~ - =====-mcemeces ccmccccccccccce e YD - m e m e e m e e s
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
48,947 43,608 66,208 554,198 479,688 533,079
4,612 2,778 8,381 66,832 31,653 73,721
95,601 78,186 112,547 840,051 860, 046 821,100
577 1] 777 6,348 0 4,663
300 835 0 3,300 9,185 3,885
38,791 33,656 38,457 371,027 370,216 345,800
<90,610> <61l,667> <101,014> <744,816> <679,587> <745,002>
98,219 97,396 125,356 1,096,938 1,071,201 1,037,245
21,485 19,583 17,258 221,660 215,413 196,704
2,098 2,167 2,098 29,412 23,837 23,078
314 300 314 3,523 3,300 3,553
1,114 325 47 9,158 5,075 8,587
0 625 [ 0 6,875 3,395
0 625 175 1,071 9,875 6,346
0 208 499 5,990 2,288 3,859
0 1,000 0 250 11,000 1,464
0 4] 0 0 0 62
2,573 5,417 9,898 52,428 59,587 47,299
1,875 2,167 1,533 29,547 23,837 25,743
3,220 8,250 6,777 48,257 90,750 106,945
100 0 <953> <182> 0 <204>
(] 0 0 3,389 0 3,098
2,632 1,250 874 21,942 13,750 19,864
468 1,300 1,310 12,600 14,300 16,344
o] 292 4] 0 3,212 0
248 333 495 2,723 3,663 2,723
4] 450 ("] 9,083 4,950 8,739
26,669 10,666 16,370 96,463 117,326 116,179
44,681 15,091 10,750 152,095 166,001 170,603
552 1,000 686 8,333 11,000 8,683
[ 0 0 307 0 0
10,517 13,699 12,235 124,399 150,689 136,387
0 0 0 72 0 69
0 1,917 0 4,880 21,087 5,644
648 1,000 735 12,272 11,000 12,562
247 1,000 2,369 11,086 11,000 10,453
2,160 1,592 1,792 23,911 17,512 19,838
15,144 4,583 2,707 73,779 50,413 47,646
40,740 64,150 58,451 693,343 705,650 701,748
19,354 19,525 18,956 212,898 214,775 208,519
0 <2,671> <954> <27,615> <29,381> <26,939>
<1,209> <375> <1,290> <12,148> <4,125> <10,088>
195,629 175,469 163,131 1,824,925 1,934,659 1,878,903
293,848 272,865 288,487 2,921,863 3,005,860 2,916,148



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Security System Upgrades 30,000 30,000 Open
Phone System Upgrades 15,000 15,000 Open
Ice Deck Cover 100,000 96,542 3,458 Complete
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Banquet Room - Interior 25,000 25,000 Open
Total Arena 185,000 96,542 88,458
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 185,000 96,542 88,458
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,438,936 (1,396,827) 42,109 1,349,134
Benchmark 1,599,958  (1,598,427) 1,531 1,206,573
Excess (161,022) 201,600 40,578 142,561

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2003
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 232,252 232,252 464,504 454,950
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,709,058 2,556,284 7,265,342 7,118,841
Benchmark Revenue 4,335,280 2,380,958 6,716,238 6,237,971
Revenue Excess 373,778 175,326 549,104 880,870
Incentive Fee ** 74,756 35,065 109,821 176,173
Total SMG Management Fee 307,008 267,317 574,325 631,123

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.c.iii.

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Eleven Months Ended May 31, 2004

M BEENE GARTER LLP



50 MONROE AVE. NW 616.235.5200 PHONE

SuUITE 600 800.824.7882
ﬂ BEENE GARTER LLP GRAND RaPIDS, MI 616.235.5285 Fax
49503-2679 WWW.BEENEGARTER.COM

ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying statements of cash receipts and disbursements - budget to
actual for the operating and construction accounts of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention /
Arena Authority for the eleven months ended May 31, 2004, in accordance with Statements on
Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. These statements do not include the cash receipts and disbursements of the Van
Andel Arena and Grand Center which are operated by the Authority. The financial statements
presented have been prepared on the cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of
accounting other than U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. \We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Authority's net
assets, cash receipts and cash disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not
designed for those who are not informed about such matters.

We are not independent with respect to the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena
Authority.

June 9, 2004
Grand Rapids, Michigan

Big enough to be experts, small enough to care™

AUDIT, TAX & ADVISORY SERVICES  EMPLOYER SUPPORT SERVICES  WEALTH MANAGEMENT SERVICES

A MEMBER OF MOORE STEPHENS INTERNATIONAL



INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operating Accounts)
From July 1, 2003 to May 31, 2004

OPERATING ACCOUNTS
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Facility Operations $ 1,827,565 $ 2,850,000 $ - $ -
Land Lease 107,000 97,911 - -
Interest on investments 20,000 14,203 12,000 8,342
Capital Replacement Reserve Transfer 930,402 - (930,402) -
Miscellaneous Revenue 8,000 18,794 - -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,892,967 2,980,908 (918,402) 8,342
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 59,245 24,076 - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 33,595 17,046 - -
Legal Services 32,000 31,837 - -
Other Contractual Services 42,000 103,394 - -
Pedestrian Safety 95,000 - - -
Facility Management Fees - 176,173 - -
Meeting Expense 890 554 - -
Supplies 1,000 417 - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 - - -
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,263,730 353,497 - -
Electricity 1,031,332 739,402 - -
Natural Gas - 68,956 - -
Steam 831,834 787,800 - -
Water and Sewer 99,300 74,730 - -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,962,466 1,660,888 - -
Building Additions and Improvements - - 70,000 -
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - 115,000 -
Sub-total Capital Disbursements - - 185,000 -
Employee Wages 53,300 56,077 - -
Employee Benefits 17,366 16,538 - -
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements 70,666 72,615 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 3,296,862 2,087,000 185,000 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ (403,895) § 893,908 $ (1,103,402) §$ 8,342
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 3,403,895 1,596,704
Net Assets - End of Year $ 3,000,000 $ 493,302
See Comments See Comments
1,2and 3 1,2and 3

Comment 1. Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on May 28, 2003.
Comment 2: Facilities Operations columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center
financial statements prepared by SMG.
Comment 3: Activity on this statement is represented by the following account:
Authority Operating Account Cash balance as of May 31,2004 § 2,641,689

See accountants’ report

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction Accounts)
From July 1, 2003 to May 31, 2004

RECEIPTS
Grand Action
Downtown Development Authority
County of Kent
City of Grand Rapids - grant proceeds
Miscellaneous Revenue
Transfer from Operating Fund
Transfer from Construction Fund
Interest on Retainage
Interest on Investments

TOTAL RECEIPTS

DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services
Construction Material Testing
Construction - GMP Contractor

Sub-total Contractor Disbursements
Transfer to Retainage Account

Accounting / Auditing Services
Insurance - Property / Liability
Legal Services
Owner's Representatives
Other Contractual Services
Telephone
Sub-total Service Disbursements

Facility Equipment Acquisition
Facility Furniture Acquisition
Sub-total Supply Disbursements
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds

Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Net Assets - End of Year

Convention Center Construction

Budget Actual Retainage
$ 32,048,961 $ 32,532,314 $ -
10,000,000 10,000,000 -
5,000,000 5,000,000 -
3,528,884 - -
- 332,541 -
1,000,000 - -
- - 1,891,375
- - 36,584
397,550 609,619 -
51,975,395 48,474,474 1,927,959
4,605,255 1,496,112 -
583,610 247,574 -
56,390,602 41,246,898 4,218,768
61,579,467 42,990,584 4,218,768
- 1,891,375 -
- 11,050 -
116,100 116,100 -
7,000 39,534 -
245,000 232,430
1,141,035 1,384,669 -
2,000 1,537 -
1,511,135 1,785,320 -
- 1,121,302
- 684,156 -
- 1,805,458 -
63,090,602 48,472,737 4,218,768
$ (11,115,207) $ 1,737 $ (2,290,809)

33,271,289

$ 22,156,082
See Comments

1and 2

Comment 1: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County

Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on March 26, 2003.
Comment 2: Activity on this statement is represented by the following accounts:

Authority Construction Cash and Equivalents balances as of May 31, 2004

Sub-total Authority Construction Cash and Equivalents

Sweep
Maxsaver
Investments

Retainage

Total Cash and Equivalents

$ 19,102,586
19,052,114

38,154,700

2,578,207

$ 40,732,907

" BEENE GARTER LLP

See accountants' report



Item IV.c.iv.

FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Convention/Arena Authority Finance Committee
FROM:  Robert White Q4

Fiscal Services Dffrector

SUBJECT: Convention/Arena Authority (CAA)
Fiscal Year 2005 Budget Requests
Supplemental Materials

DATE: May 27, 2004

At the CAA Finance Committee of May 20th, staff presented an *“Operating-Capital
Improvement/Replacement Budget” for FY2005 (year ending June 30, 2005). This budget
request incorporated the net operating loss before depreciation, as reported by the Facilities
Manager, of ($60,864) and other “Administrative” revenue estimates and requested
appropriations.

At the May Finance Committee meeting staff was directed to review the Fiscal Year 2005 budget
recommendations for the purpose of identifying potential changes, which might reduce or
eliminate the forecasted CAA net deficit of ($203,144). Staff, including Jana Wallace, Chris
Machuta and myself reviewed all of the previously submitted material for the purpose of
identifying those expenditures which might be identified as discretionary in nature.

The attached “Detail of Expenditure Estimates” provides additional lines of information to
supplement that which was reviewed at the last Fiscal Committee meeting. This additional level
of detail was deemed necessary in order to identify certain line items of expenditure which might
be considered for further discussion. The Finance Committee should review and discuss the
necessity of appropriating monies for the following identified line items:

e “Pedestrian Safety” — The total cost, for this service, is estimated at $237,163 for FY2005.
Based on a formula previously agreed to by the parties, the CAA’s share of this expense
(36.28%) equates to $86,000. The CAA is not legally obliged to provide this contribution, in
support of “pedestrian safety” activities, but if support were to be withdrawn, the CAA
might risk the loss of participation by the DDA and City - Auto Parking System (other
participating funding agencies).



CAA FY05 Budget
Page 2

e DID Assessment - The CAA did “voluntarily” pay the Downtown Improvement District
Assessment ($36,984) from its FY2004 Budget Appropriation. FY2005 request includes an
appropriation request of $38,100 to provide for continued “voluntary” participation.
Payment of this special assessment, by the CAA, can be considered discretionary in nature.

e Building Improvements/FF & E - This budgetary account includes a spending allowance of
$372,000 for Capital Improvement/Replacements, as submitted by SMG. The list of projects
to be undertaken in the next fiscal year included terrazzo floor repair in the amount of
$38,000 and installation of hydraulic seating in the amount of $190,000. Based upon
additional discussion with SMG representatives it has been determined that these two
improvement projects may be deferred to the FY2006 budget cycle. It would be understood
that preparation of bid specifications and preliminary engineering could be completed
during FY2005 with contract award and work to commence shortly after the beginning of
the next fiscal year (July 1, 2005).

Staff representatives will be available at the CAA Finance Committee to provide further

background information, as required, concerning either the items noted above or other budgetary
issues which may be identified.

Cc: Jana Wallace
Chris Machuta

Attachment: Detail of Expenditure Estimates — FY2005



GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
DETAIL OF EXPENDITURE ESTIMATES

FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2004 & 2005

Wages
Benefits

Utilities

Electricity

Steam

Water/Sewer

Gas
Parking Management
Pedestrian Safety
Accounting/Audit Services
Legal Services
DID Assessment
insurance Premiums
Meetings/Supplies

Building improvements/FF+E
Transfer to Capital Acct.

R.J. White
5/18/2004

FY2004

Budget Estimate
$53,300 $53,300
17,366 17,016
70,666 70,316
1,031,332 919,206
831,834 915,781
99,300 109,839
—— 68,000
93,273 67,151
95,000 61,746
59,245 59,245
32,000 40,000
42,000 36,984
33,595 17,500
1,890 1,100
185,000 185,000
1,000,000 ——
$3,675,135 $2,551,868

FY2005

Request
$54,336

18,933
73,269

1,078,000
997,050
133,400

75,000
257,011
86,000
62,000
40,000
38,100
18,500
1,800

372,000

$3,232,230



Item IV.c.v.

Van Andel Arena® /

GSMGD DeVos Place®

Pedvaie Moasgemeat for Pubits Faciiizies

Memorandum

CAA - Finance Committee

Richard MacKeigan — General Manager

Chris Machuta — Director of Finance; file

Thursday, June 17, 2004

2005 DeVos Place Facility Operating & Capital Budget

i'g”g?z'

I am presenting a revision to our budget for FY 2005. As you are all aware, the budgeting
process for both the Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place begins in the middle of February, and
is completed and approved by SMG Corporate in the late March, early April time frame. For
FY 2005, the timing of the opening of DeVos Place did not afford us the opportunity to look
at actual performance for many of our assumptions when completing the fiscal year 2005
budget.

With completion of the May facility financial statements, it has become evident that a couple
of the revenue assumptions that were made for both the current fiscal year, as well as, the
fiscal year 2005 budget were low. Ancillary income related to Food & Beverage, Electrical,
and Equipment Rental have all exceeded expectations through the current fiscal year. We see
no reason why fiscal year 2005 will trend any different. This indicates to me that the Devos
Place Operating budget is too conservative as originally presented in May.

Attached you will find a revised operating budget in which revenue expectations have been
increased in the areas previously mentioned. No changes to indirect expenses have been made.
Likewise, no changes have been made to the VanAndel Arena budget. DeVos Place’s original
budget (presented at the May meeting) projected an operating deficit of $1.576 million. The
revised budget, as attached, has the projected deficit decreasing to $1.388 million, or a positive
variance of $188,000 for the fiscal year.

I request that the Finance Committee consider and approve these changes and recommend
approval to the CAA Board of Directors at the June meeting. Additionally, SMG Corporate
has approved these changes.

N

[

VAN ANDEL

ARENA DEVOSPLACE




VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FACILITY OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.c.v.



889'6C 98y'68b’L  ¥LL'SLS'L  E9L°LL 6vL'Ze ¥z9'8l £p5'SSC  299'961L  86E'18L  2€0'p2L  e£pLLSL  £€2lEL  §8e'esl L18'9LL  09%'6E
(zeo'sLL) 68Y'vOL'S  1ZS'€8Z'€  886'2.C  €00'S.Z  €00'€lZ  €00'€lZ  £05'082  €00'€lZ  £00'€.Z  €00'€.Z  £00'€lZ  £00'€iC  €00'€.Z  €00'€LZ
(952's2) LWe'8lZ's  16S'€0E'L  $£9'80L  ££9'80L  €£9'80L  ££9'801 £€9'80L  £€9'80L  £€9'80L  ££9'80L  ££9'80) ££9'801 £69'80L  ££9'801
662'C 0ve'6e L6°'9¢E zi0'e 6.0'c 6.0'c 620't 6.0'c 6.0'c 620'c 6.0'C 6.0'S 6.0'S 6L0'¢ 6.0'c
(069't) 206'801 265'€LL 09v'6 19%'6 L9%'6 L9v'6 L9v'6 L9%'6 L9%'6 Lov'6 L9v'6 L9¥'6 L9%'8 L9%'6
¥EL'L ¥52'80L 0ZL'20L Zi6's 8Z6'8 826'8 826's 8Z6'8 826'8 826'8 8z6's 826's 826'8 826'8 826'8
(165'6%) 06v'Z¥L'L  LBO'ZEL'L  160'66 060'66 060'66 060'66 060'201 060'66 060'66 060'66 060'66 060'66 060'66 060'66
(55£'¥2) 602'¥02 $90'622 126'8) £96'81 £96'8L £96'8L £o¥'02 £96'8l £96'8l €96'8L £96'8l £96'8lL £96'8L £96'8l
(669'v2) ziLe's9l L19'e6L zLo'sl 600'91 600'91 600'91 605'L} 600'91L 600'9} 6000l 600'st 600'94 600'91 600'9L
9zL'e 9c9'clL oLs'20L 9e8's yee8's yee's y£8'8 yee'ol vee8's $£8'8 ¥£8's pes's ves's pe8's $£8'8
0zZL'vhL S16'€S9'Y  G69'86L'F  LSL'PPE  ZSL'SOE  L29'L6T  9¥S'8ZS  OLL'6LY L9E'PSP  SE0'Z6E  9ObL'OEy  9€Z'vOr  88€'L9P  0Z8'68C  E£9¥'TLE
(c00°2¢) €00'/10'CT  000'586'L  v2v's9l  OLP'SOL  9Lb'S9L 9Lb'S9l 9Lp's9l oly'sal  olb'soL  oL¥'sel  SLp'sSL  oL¥'SeL  oLb'eol 9Lp's9L
000'52 000'5. 0s2'9 0s2'9 0s2'9 0s2'9 0s2'9 052'9 052'9 0s2'9 0s2'9 0se'9 052'9 052'9
000592 000592 180'22 £80'22 £80'22 £80'22 £80'22 £80'22 £80'2Z £80'22 £80'22 £80'22 £80'22 £80'22
000'st 000'st 0sl'e 0sl's 0s's 0sl't osl's osL's 0sl'e osL'c 0sL'e 0s2'c 0sL'e 0sL'¢
000'055 000'055 le8'sy ££8'sy £E8'SH £E8'cH £e8'sh £E8'sh £eg'sy £e8'st £e8'sy £e8'sy £€8'St ££8'sY
000°050'L 000'050'L  005'.8 005'.8 005'28 005'28 005'28 005'28 005'.8 005'28 005'28 005'28 005'.8 005'.8
£22'9LL TLe'9e9'  ge9'tLe'T  lzl'slL ege'ovl 129zl 0EL'E9E  PSL'EIE  Sb6'88T  6L9'LEZ  0SL'Y9T  028'8€Z  <Cl6'S6T  vOV'WEZ  LbO'Lbl
15¢'9L l0L'660'L  $ZS'SES’L  SEb'es 090'09 6L¥'L8 £0¥'L0Z 105'62L  900°'L8L  ¥82'8€L  S89'8El  SET'VEL ¥£0'691 258'66 019'89
289°'0F 289'0¥ - - 262'9 200'6 816'L 06€'s 029't 080'c oLz'e 0Li'L - -
zLL'sze zihL'oze 096's1 096'S1 086'L 5858t vsL'ee Lv8'vL 096's1 0v6'€Z ¥09'c2 Ziv'6L 060'22 096'S1
0lL'0L 0LL'0L §16'Z 001’2 1687 olg's vee'L ¥69'8 ¥0z's 5999 LL9'Y zie's zoL'e 0sL'e
095'86L'} 095'86L'L  00S'v9 000'z¥ 052'29 000's9L  S08'9EL 6/0'25L  00S'60b  000'S0L  0SZ'20L  080°0¥L  000'69 005'6¥
99¢€'001 S08'LLL'L  LLL'8LZ'L 262’66 9/2'08 z6L'rY 22191 €ST'PEL 6€6'20L  GEE'EH SY0'92L  $8S'POL  8€6'9ZL  ZSS'PTL Lev'8L
(62¥'6.9) (62v'6L9)  (so0l'st) 9.l'8 (gse'e9)  (e22'2L1)  (le6'06)  (Lig's9L)  (soi'se)  (ss¥'zl)  (s9g'op)  (295'L8)  (8¥b'L) l€8'LL
009266} 009'/66°L  000'vLL  00S'LL 0S.'80L  00S'6€E  0SZ'szZ  0SZ'Z/2  00S'LEL  O00S'€yk  0G2'SPL  00S'80Z 000924 00999
188'¥2 6189 002'602 000'Le 000'6} 005'89 000241 005'06 005'66 000'29 000'vS 005'8¥ 00Z'vL 000’08 000'0Z
@) 6Ll yARS S € oL JA! ] 12 oL 6 L €l ¥ €
avA IOov/iIsSS 139ang NOP AVA Hdv HvYn g34d NI fox[] AON 100 d3s onv ane
#002 Ad $00Z Ad

(SSOT) INOINI ALIHOVH 13N

S3SN3dX3 LOJMIANI TVLOL

QY3HY3NO
AIYMANS
ONILY3S AdNXNT
301440 X08
SNOILYY3dO
ONILIMEVYN
JONVNIL
3AILNO3X3
SISNIdX3 LOIYIANI

3NOONI SSOYD aatsnravy

IJWOONI ¥3H10 TVLOL
3FWOONI SNOIANVTIZOSIW
S3AILNIONI L3HOIL
INOODNI LSTUILNI
ONISILY3AQY LININVINNTd
ONILVY3S A¥NXNT

3WOONI ONILYYIdO ¥3HLO

IJWOIN! LNIA3 TVLOL

JWNOOINI AYVTIIONY TVLOL
Qyvog O3aIA
S3ILI3AON
ONRIZLYD
SNOISS3aONOD
3WOOINI AYVTIIONY

JWOON!I LN3A3 103¥10 V10l
IWOINI 30IAY3S
AN3Y

3WOONI LN3IA3 103dIa

3ONVAN3LLY
SIONVWHOIYIJ/SAVA LNIA3

$007 ‘0¢ Junr 3upuy Jeax (63514
q3y3ry 393png
Auomny vuaay/uonudAnoe) Auno)) Judy - spidey puessn
EUIY PpuUy UBA - OIS



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Summary of Service Income
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

Service Income Billed
Stagehands
Maintenance Labor
Changeover
Security
Ushers / Ticket Takers
Receptionist
Box Office Labor
Box Office Ticket Charges
Fire Marshall
EMT
Custodial
Telephone
Other Miscellaneous Billed
Total Service Income Billed

Service Income Expense
Stagehands
Maintenance Labor Allocated
Contracted Changeover
Contracted Security
Contracted Ushers / Ticket Takers
Receptionist
Credit Card Fee's
Fire Marshall
EMT
Contracted Custodial
Telephone Allocated
Other Miscellaneous Expense
Total Service Income Expense

Total Net Service Income (Loss)

506,900
17,035
114,500
161,500
119,200
2,225
11,750
221,850
11,544
16,500
86,250
24,075
171,800

539,406
14,939
255,604
239,790
276,570
2,295
252,250
16,974
36,841
309,896
8,047
189,300

1,465,129

2,141,912

(676,783)



| 8zh'oLL 195'269°'C §69'€18'C z89°'0 ziy'oee 01’0 095'86L°L  (62¥'629) 009°256'} 00Z'60L L IVLOL ANVYS)]
(vev'sl) zeo'czt 885°c01 - - v2e'e 0050V {9g2'02) 00008 000°0F 1 SAONVTIZOSIN Y101
(vzv'er) 661'59 sL'sy - - §28 00522 (009'92) 000°05 00051 5 UORU3AUOD
{o1£2) 169°LE 18¢8'6Z - - SI8°L 000'sl [y 4 00s'2 000t I sjanbueg snoaue(jadsiy
00¢'y zeL'oz eVl - - vi8 - 850’y 0082 0001 £ uopenpeus a63)109
Li8')151 898'99¢'L SH'LLS'L - obs'esl 051'v2 000°¢8Y §52°06 000°9€L 000°'v81 €2 SI¥3ONOD TYIOL
(zvo'2zy) zp0'L2y - - - - - - - - - ueRSHYD
(coz'zst) £02°Z51 - - - - - - - - - Anunod
zze'ocy £29'980°1 SHr'LLS') - ops'est 0512 ooo0'csy §52°06 000'9¢L 000'v8L (14 ooy
L8yl 81°06¢ ovL'ses 0092 265'vE 6206 086°6¥Z (191'p92) 004°'20§ 008°v51 I3 SMOHS ATINYS TV10L
[ 71327 25 - ost‘s 299t 00s‘ct {ove's) 009'z¢ 000°0L z Ajjweg snoaueyaosi
(r90'y) 062°08 ozL'9L oor zIs's piu% 000'82 [(x44:18} 00029 008°ZL 4 SJ49pIY [Ing |euoissajoid
18v'9L 28¥°9L 006 9L §25 000°9¢ (z85'c2) 000'sS 00091 z $S0420J0W 3|ysa244
(6LL's) ziL'se £s9'ee - 187 sz8 00522 (e¥Z'v2) 0002¢ 000°0b € ssosoeUMY
(zsd) z96'ey oLz'ey oov §29'Z $8¢ 000°'sZ (o0z'sz) 000°0¥ 000°Z) z oapoy souoag pue siing
(coe’s1) syv'Le 144 %43 006 'L E4] 659°'tE (z8s'e2) 000'sS 000°ch € 4oL 19suoly
6£s’'L 181'2e ozL'8e - 0s1'e 147 00§'s svs'L 00082 000°2 3 93] uo IS
ssK'sp 8£6'€Z €60'29 - - osl's [:74:324 (zsv'gs) 00006 000°ce 8 29 uo Aausia
(vor'L) viv'es oL0'2e - 066°€ ozy 000'ZL (oot's) 000°0¢ 0009 3 SI2)3043G0]9 WapeH
129'2L 9¢8'se 12528 - - S8t 000°2t (svs'cd) 005°Z8 000's€ 8 ssayjolg Buybury
[ 692'818 225'¢99 280'8¢ 086°L 199'se 080°sZV (282's8%) 005'yc9 oov'0ee §§ S1Y0dS IVL0L
942 610'9Z §62'9Z - - 182 0006 800y 0052 000's z SusUIRWING] Jleqaxseg 362(100
(zst) L'y sze'YL - - sl 000°s (058°22) 000°Z¢ 000'¢ 3 Neqiayseq jooyss ybiH
(ses's2) ssl'tl - - - - - - - - - Buixogd |euoissajosd
(Log'p1) ogeos 526'S9 - 0862 050°} 00042 SPE'E 000°z¢ 0008 ! Buipsaim Jeuoissajosd
(280°cy) 180'cy - - - - - - - - - uoseasaid YaN
§€6'C [ §.8'901 - - §.8 000°Z¢ (000'99) 000°0vE 0009} z juawewnoy £3)20H YVON
soc'y zav'os 29L'v¢ oLL - 00§‘c 08082 T - oot'os I uoseasaid THN
- - - - sjjoheld abedwey
(182'ch) 9svcl $0Z Z15°9 - - - (zoc'v2) 000'89 000'v9 8 uoseag Jejnbay abedwey
{o16sp) ol8‘ty - - - - - - - - - puaNeIM IS NIV THY
{rse'st) psv'sl - - - - - - - - - syofeld suuo
0£0'ee 0502 080°s0% 0080 - 08z'22 000'0¢E (000'ces) 000°05¢ 000022 or uoseag seinbay suuO
$00Z Ad 5002 A4 awodu) | | | | P 3dAL IN3A3
JONVRIVA INOONI IWOONI paeog 03pIA AyanoN Gupared Uo|SSaoU0D LLITVE S leyuay JOON
AN3A3 AN3A3 $002

§002 ‘0¢ aunr Bugpu3 Jea jeasid

Areunung juaaz
0 KunoY juay - spidey puesd

Muoyny eualy / uoy

BUASY [2pUY UBA - ONS



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

Budget Estimate
E/Y 2005 E/Y 2004 Variance
Salaries 1,141,995 978,775 (163,220)
Salaries Part - Time 540,000 530,925 (9,075)
Auto Allowance 11,825 10,525 (1,300)
Payroll Taxes 135,628 135,065 (563)
Employee Benefits 180,176 173,008 (7,168)
Pension 44 349 30,603 (13,746)
Union Expenses 50,000 46,365 (3,635)
Allocated Salaries (848,590) (760,285) 88,305
Total Labor Costs 1,255,383 1,144,981 (110,402)
Contracted Security 228,000 237,896 9,896
Contracted Cleaning 27,500 24,660 (2,840)
Meetings 11,700 10,055 (1,645)
Meals & Entertainment 6,700 7,197 497
Dues & Subscriptions 2,500 7,443 4,943
Professional Fees 28,500 32,785 4,285
Employee Training 9,000 7,845 (1,155)
Printing 22,000 17,780 (4,220)
Advertising 40,000 41,470 1,470
Trash Removal 15,000 20,503 5,503
Landscaping 3,500 2,875 (625)
Armored Services 3,600 3,815 215
Exterminating 4,000 2,640 (1,360)
Cleaning 10,800 15,072 4,272
Repairs & Maintenance 112,000 108,157 (3,843)
Supplies 154,100 147,523 (6,577)
Corporate Travel 7,500 6,036 (1,464)
Computer Expenses 65,000 59,228 (5,772)
Marketing Fund 38,000 37,480 (520)
Equipment Rental 15,600 17,239 1,639
Bank Service Charges 12,000 9,579 (2,421)
General Liability Insurance 85,104 73,685 (11,419)
Property Insurance 31,000 29,528 (1,472)
Insurance Expense 43,132 38,741 4,391)
Printing & Stationary 11,000 10,478 (522)
Office Supplies 12,000 11,043 957)
Postage 12,000 13,509 1,509
Parking Expense 18,000 23,587 5,587
Telephone 36,000 63,004 27,004
Utilities 762,800 753,203 9,597)
Management Fee 237,361 232,252 (5,109)
Incentive Fee 0 - -
Amortization 0 - -
Allocated Expenses (37,259) (46,800) (9,541)
Total Materials & Service 2,028,138 2,019,508 (8,630)
Total Indirect Expenses 3,283,521 3,164,489 (119,032)




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

The base fee started with the new contract in F/Y 2002 as $450,000 split evenly between
DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena. This fee is subject to an annual increase based

on the change in the CPI-U. This budget assumes that the increase will be 2.2% for fiscal
year 2005.

The incentive fee is based on benchmark revenues for each of the two facilities. The Van
Andel Arena benchmark is based on the number set in the SMG Managerial Contract
which is subject to the same annual increase as stated above for the base fee. The Devos
Place benchmark is equal to the budgeted total gross revenue for each fiscal year. The
incentive fee based on a percentage of the combined revenues in excess of the combined
benchmark. SMG receives 20% of the first $1 million and 25% above that. In no fiscal
year can the incentive fee exceed that of the base fee.

SMG is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue
above Expenses for the facilities exceeds the total of $1,635,157 (Van Andel) and the
budgeted figure for DeVos Place.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2005 compared to the
expected fee for F/Y 2004.

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,515,174  (1,388,942) 126,232 (96,630)
Benchmark 1,635,157  (1,388,942) 246,215 1,531
Excess (119,983) - (119,983) (98,161)
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 237,361 237,361 474,722 464,504
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,798,695 3,246,912 8,045,607 7,073,436
Benchmark Revenue 4,430,656 3,246,912 7,677,568 6,716,238
Projected Revenue Increase - - - 357,198
Incentive Percentage 20% 20% 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 237,361 237,361 474,722 464,504




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place (Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Capital Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

{1}

{1}

Project F/Y 2005 F/Y 2006
Terrazzo Floor Repair 38,000
Hydraulic Seating 190,000
Box Office - Electronic Signing 14,000

Spotlights - Arena 125,000

Banquet Refurbishment - Exterior 100,000
Refinish DeVos Performance Hall Stage Floor 50,000
Total 139,000 378,000

Pending the outcome of the interior work to be performed on DeVos
Performance Hall in the summer months of 2004, and whether or not
it is included as a part of the project, the stage floor of the Theater

will need to be refinished.



SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Management Fee Calculation

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

Position F/Y 2004 F/Y 2005 Change
General Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Finance 1.00 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 2.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 3.00 3.00 -
Box Office Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 2.00 2.00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 1.00 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 1.00 1.00 -
Maintenance Support 10.00 10.00 -
Operations Manager 2.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 17.00 17.00 -
Director of Sales 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Support 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Event Services 1.00 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 6.00 6.50 0.50
Total 57.00 57.50 0.50



Item IV.c.v.

DE VOS PLACE

FACILITY OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



viL'L61 (or1'oss’t) (zve'sse’t) (s89'2.2)  (985'92ZL)  88L'LL 80£'99 (ezg'eLl)  (9s9'sh) (sit'esl)  (os1's8L)  (LEL'Q) (zsL'zel) (e88'102)  (8EZ'L61)
(222'0£9) 11S'S00'y  vS8'SE9'Y  €89'¥2P 192'09¢ Lov'Lee 190'v¥Y Lib'ely Li9'Ley L9e'LEY 19e'z8e L9€'eEe 198'0LE 198'€0€ 19€°20€
(ess'192) 606°858°L zov'ori'c  062'92) zSE'PSL 2s0'eLL 259'8£2 204'992 202°'942 266°'222 266'S81 zs6'svh esy'ezt SY'ELL zsvy'elt
(e92'9) ve'sL L01's8 $80°L €60'L £60'L £€60°2 €60'2 £60'L £60'L €60'L €60°L €60'L £60'L €60'L
(29¢e'cel) L12'TsL 8£9'v88 6Lp's9L 69v'zL 69v'2L 69v'2L 69b'SL 69v'CL 69v'cL 69v'c9 69v'vS 69v'vS 69Y'vS 69Y'vS
(892'c02) 129'96L S6€'000'L 18028 v.0'e8 v20'68 v10'28 vL0'98 v10'Z8 $10's8 v20'28 v20°Z8 V2028 v10's8 v.5'e8
002'S 8e0'LYL 8€8'SEL 20€'L1 1ze'tL 1ZE° L 12e'1L 12e'1L Lze'LlL 1Ze'LL 12e'LL 1ze'LL 1Ze'LL 12€'4L 12e'Ll
€50'L1 €LE'TL 092'L9 9lL's yoL's vov's oL's oL's yoL's PoL'S ¥OL'S oL's ¥oL's voL's yoL's
(s¥6'L1) 110’81 220'102 0S.'91 zsL'at zsi'ol Zsi'aL zsl'ol zsL'9L zs8L'9L 2sL'oL 25L'91 zsL'sl 26L'91 zsi'ot
(ve9'y) 86v'2Z) zeL'et 9.5'01L 965'0L 965'01 965'01 96501 965°04 965°01 965°0L 965°0L 965°04 965'0L 9650}
LSt'L28 Lov'6LP'T  ZL6'9VZ'E 866'0P1 s02'vee 6v9'86€ 69€'0LS 8€2'so¢ SE6'SEY 14 WA LL1'S6L oez'z2e 620'8LL 2/6'101 €Z1's0l
S¥e'Ls SSL'SLL 000°29} €L6'EL LI6'EL L16'EL L16'¢L L16°€L LI6'EL LLg'eL LL6'EL L16'EL LI6'EL LI6'EL LI8'EL
000°2 00021 000'} 000'L 000'L 000} 000°'L 000'L 0004 0004 000°L 000't 000°} 000'}
000's€ 000'se €16 1162 L1862 162 L16°C L16C 1162 116'C L1162 116°C L1162 1162
000'08 000°08 £99'9 199'9 199'9 199’9 £99'9 299'9 199'9 199'9 199'9 199'9 £99'9 199'9
000°0¥ 000°0¥ lee'e €EE'E €E€'E €ee'e gee'e £ee'e eee'e eee'e €EE'E €ee'e €EE'e €ee'e
902'9LL 90/'€0€'Z  ZIL6'6L0'C  S80'EEl 882°'02Z ZEL'V8E [Asi 514 12e'1se 8lo'zey 920've2 vsZ'ielL cle'ele 291'v9L S50°88 902°L6
L2e'162 LvL'v6L 890'260°L SLL'95 zelL'el Liv'ast SZy'esl ol 'z2l 9z6'ecl 02628 yoL'sy 906'60L $86'vE SSS'ey 9292y
S96°181 S96'18L oSyl 62s'8t §/2'sZ sze'e 0SL'vL osl'el oov'Li oov'zL oes'sl ost's 000°ZL oLL'e
S8Y'LEE sst'lee ssv'el vL'9L 90L'v9 091'6S 290°8¢ osv'oe 06v'ee 828'L 822'92 $2Z'st Si6'€ o6l‘ze
yee'egl vee'esl ove's 0o8's 09€'ve zig'se 009'61 zes'oy ov8'e z66'e spo'LL 082't 080' oye'l
000'81L 000'81L 000' 006'2 0sL'T - 0012 0sz'e 059'L 000'L 001 0se'L - -
ova'zre ova'eve 02L'SL vee'Le 096'v2 9ve'6ee 9.2'0¢ 9le'L voz've 9e2'0L 1 ox 44 +96'2 002°'61 989't
v65'6Z1 p6s'621 02s's 9Ll'y 09€e'9 280'ee 9le'sl 89L‘0e 9ee'9 806'Y esL'L 9i8'9 ose 002k
§88'ely 656'80S°L v¥8°186'L 0.€'9L 9GL vl 12e'922 lz0'cLe lLig'eee 260'88¢ 904°151 068°GEL L0v'e0Z 8L1'6zZ) 00S'Sy 08s'sy
862°201 862'204 0ee's 965'9 96v'8 1ZV'61 2022 [T 4%4 182'94 SS6°cl ey’ ove's (o00'e) (ooz'e)
9v5'688’t 9v5'688‘L 0SL'bL 009'vEL oA A A 006'€62 0L0'2ee 008'992 GZE'PEL se6'LeL £86'961 8€2'seL 00s'st 082'2S
LSh'sHL $.6'vSS SZv'049 0o0z'ze 002'LS oov'es 00S°LiL 0S9°'c9 001901 008'LS oov'Ly 0st'8s 61029 oov'el ose's
o oee 9.¢ 0C 6¢ 14 34 o€ 0g e 8e P2 6C Zl Sl
"VA 10V/1S3 139angd NAP AV ¥ydv YW 934 NVl J3a AON 100 d38 onvy nr
002 Ad S00C Ad

(SSOT) INOONI ALINIOVL L3N

S3SNIdX3 LOJYIANI TVLOL

Qv3aHY3IA0
301440 X0g
S30IAY3S IN3IA3
SNOILVYAdO
S3vsS
ONILIMIVIN
JONVNIS
IALLND3IX3
S3SNIIX3 LOIHIANI

3WOODNI SSONO galsnrav

JANOINI ¥IHLO TVIOL
3NOONI ¥3HLO
L13NY3LNI
SIALLNIONI L3MOIL
INOON! LSIHIUNI
JANOON! ONILYYIdO ¥3HL0

JWOONI LN3A3 TVLOL

JWOONI AYVTIIONY TVLOL
AN3INGIND3
IVOIdLO313
¥O1vy0oo3a
ALT3AON
ONRIZLVYO
SNOISSTONOD
INOINI AIYTHONY

3WOONI LN3A3 103410 Tv10L
JWOONI 30IAY3S
AN3Y

JNOINI LNIA3 LO3HIA

3ONVON3LLY
SIONVINHO4HId/SAVA INIAT

5002 ‘o€ sung Suipug 182 [E3SIY
JUIWI)E)S JWOIU] PEd]

Luoyiny euday/uonuaauo)) 3uno)) Judyj - sprdey pusin

(133u3) puein) ey SOAI - OIS



SMG - Devos Place
Summary of Service Income
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

Service Income Billed
Ushers / Ticket Taker
Security
Traffic Control
Fire Marshall
EMT
Stagehands
Box Office Labor
Ticket Charges
Telephone

Total Service Income Billed

Service Income Expense
Contracted Cleaning Expense
Contracted Traffic Control
Fire Marshall
Box Office Labor Allocated
EMT
Stagehands
Contracted Security
Usher / Ticket Taker Labor Allocated
Credit Card Fee's

Total Service Income Expense

Total Net Service Income (Loss)

114,625
95,550
28,200
16,780
27,585

678,815
16,900

175,050

7,100

103,870
24,300
7,230
14,700
22,285
658,451
90,550
79,538
57,383

1,160,605

1,058,307

102,298



695 65 YOLEY9'L TLT86L2 $9026 066262 Y9009+ - 8L9T9% TOWL | $505% VT SO LYY 202 TIVH NOLLIGINXE - V101,
£29'29 962502 3 [ 89L°92 ¥20'St - 9vL'0L (X st CEr'vZL S25'95 o YIHLO T1O0L
1zz'os 3333 95¥'SS (X3 2153 'y - 'S 00Z't (T2 01568 0088 I sBupoey 7 SIeu[ues
- - . . . - - - . . - - snojBjiey
9659 su'y (713 13 73 9Z8 - - 099's - 224 Si8'L 0022 14 ssourq|
19 90’2 oLy'sL 009'8 Si9'01 o'y - 000'6 008y 505 os'or 00¥°6Z L A
(08s'18) 790'00 er'er oor's 00L's 09L's - 00Z'9L e (11 0008} 005"y 3 nes0diod
- . - - - - - . - - - . sieAsed opnpg
996'7E TN 180°S osr'os 6987 895°) - 95L'92 - (1Y) SZTSH sZe'1 1 000'} Jopun sIenbueg
29’y 656'61 195'9T 00S'y os'L 096 - L - - £10'9 008'2 £ 000} 4040 sjenbueg|
(959) 959 - - - - - - - - - - - Bupsey
SLVILL 1SY'708 929'516 008'91 0rL'se 7L0'SL - $03°s erL'Se ovL'ss 817909 058'192 95 SMOHS JN8Nd TV.10L
618°L 159'0Z [ 713+ ooy orL't 000'T - (1,4 00r'T - 056'9Z 000} € SMOYS qNng SN
ore'sh ort'sl 008 0197 ors - - 096 {os2) 088'sh 000'S H $91GQOH ' SA0)
. - - - - - - . - - - - ojesiedng
eLV'ey 928°LS 505001 - 5259 0ze't - . or'y (0ss) 000's8 000'sy 1] SOPIUIA |eUOERI0Y
ssL'os ssL'os 000°t S29°04 113} - - 0or'z (0s2) 290'91 0009 H BupLOMPOOM
z61'vL 182 yzs'ic1 o5 os's 089'2 - uz 00Z's1 sr's 000°Z0L 0517 s moys ixog
(zz0'st) 1208} - . . - - - - - - . - sepdhasolon
(919'%) 9110z 005'st 005°t - - - - - - [ 003'y ¥ spsniy
L9y [27¥) [ 243 000t osy's 00T'h - - oz - 000'9 00S'Z 3
ers's ozL'SY S19'y 006 [73% 4 095 - 43 00%'8 8zi's 005'28 000°s1 H Moys Je) wosnd
(ss1's) [ 71474 080°'sS 008 0ss'y 00Z's - - 0sy's osL's 000's4 000'sH 4 MOys Jjoo
180'LL 6606 084'0Z 000's o8 039 - - 1138 (050 000'0s 0052 € ojegmoys yesd
065°L 291191 952891 000'S orv'ol 009'L8 - oro's 0or'y uT'TL 000'c8 000'sy 1 4 Bupions) P sapowopy|
(200') us'ie 06L'82 00z §59'S ore's - - - S65°h 0052} 00s's [ uswom
(s99'c) SZY'LEE 955'201 0SL orr'ol 008'y - - ore'ss 9zL's 00002 000'¥Z 14 2 P00
nee sis'os LeL'ss 000y 0ss'y zs6's - - 821'L 69’ 008'sZ 005°t4 s smoyg Buippem
[£334] 925'421 060'121 000°t 099'st 089'2 - - 00Z'sL 0556 000'¥2 0008 14 uopIeD § SWOH
[ SS¥'0¥9 92T 110t SZS¥Y Zep'cat 896'16 - yZh'se Z68'11 z12) 095665 059'9ZL S0L SMOHSIOVIUSNOLLNIANOD TV10L
200'29 SL8'91 zeT've 056'S 06¥'SZ 082's - or'e 969 2 0SY'SP ooz'ob 4% SMOYSOPRIL ISIA
z55'8S ss'es 005 'L 008'T - (154 (242 - 092'vZ 0¥’z H [LLLTR
(ov9'sL) 99’62 . . - - - - - - - - - Buptrompoom
su's Ze'rn 20188 000's 0ss'y 9t - - ozs - 000°LL 009't z soem
oISyl ols'yl 00s ol8 ory - - 00s - 000'Z4 00s 3 $91990H 'p 3401,
' 1% sic'rL 00s S08'L 00T’ - - 0z) (os2) 000°21 [1%4 s Bupysnqnd
- - - - - - . - - - - . 930G Pood P RINESEY
(128'9) b29'9 . . . - - - - - - - s|eapnesTuLEy|
- . . . - - - - . . - seprgp]
(see'09) 168'09 - - - - - - - - - - - snoByjey
(s68'6) 569’6 - - - - - - - - - - - 1eapjied
(s65°s) i3S sLy'ey 000t S8k [ 4] - 080's (748 - 000'92 005'y € ST P WNOYOO
[717) SSTYT 90¥'15 005°t 058y 090°Z - ozL's 951 - 0096} 00Z's 9 0180 YYEOH P 1EIIPON
SH'es 000°t SK0's 00Z's - - 00Z't - 00082 009's z Bujuepieo g Buidesspury
£99's ssr'os 000'T seL'y oe's - ore's oz - 0s¥'sE 00L'Z 9 eaumnsy]
135+ 134+ 0007 0197 09L'h - 08T'e (118 (00s) 000’6 006'S ] jusunLBACD
- . . - - - - - - . - - Ausnpui |rioung
8ajAIeg pood
sLy'zrL L'z sel'szi 0s2'z 520't9 000°Z4 - - 243 (os2) 000'96 00912 [3 uogngisiq P Bussesosd pood
(sos'es) S95'sk - - - - - - - - - - . uonIN0Id 8113 P 81d
1882 666'29 951'sL 00s'} 0s0'ch orv'L . 9z 0887 w 000'05 0052 H unnogIoH ' SIMyNapol3
oer'zo0L 26¥'¥51 16819 008’0z §50'Z ozL'e - 020'v% 009's {a98} 05Z'zSk 00T's¢ <4 uogeanpa}
ore'sy ore'sy 000'Z 0.5 00y’ - 009 (243 fos2 000°ze 051’9 9 rausq
177 9)] p7i314 009'81 sT8 - - - 00T'L - sL 00504 000'9 H ssoursng|
0SSk oss'iL 0os o8 oro's - - ozL - 0006 000°Z z uogsnnsuo)  Buipiing
(zss't) z00'6Z 051'22 005 o'y oro's - 00L's - [71% 000'P8 000's € 219 ey 3 Anveg
omw'sz 14+ 000°t 019'2 00zt - 00r'z 00Z't - 000} 005"y H Bupueg
{195'6) 1956 - - - - - - . . - - . Bujuue 9 aanynapBy|
(coz's) 65718 950'08 00L 0zT'S 968 - 0zs'y 243 (0s2) 055°6} 00L'S 3 SUORFIIOSSY,
%002 Ad S00Z Ad TN SUGI) *wosu| =) Swodu) ] SWOS| SWwoUf SSuTpUIY RUSAJ STIVH LigHX3
IONVINVA ANOIN! INOINI wewdinb3 1e3g2013 Jojes008q RyonoN Bupsied uo|ssesU0) 3G |uey O ON
AN3A3 IN3A3 5002

5007 ‘o€ Jung Suppug J8I R
AJBwIwIng JUdAF

QpIoYINY BUIYU0RUALOY AHUno)) Jud) - spidey pussn

NCTLJ SOA - ONS



_ 90T9LL _ 0L05T _ Z16620% _ 596 191 Seriee Yo eul 000'8h oo Tve 65 621 962204 oYSSOR L 200 oLt SONIGIING T1¥ - V101
— —— — E—— — — T —
269922 200559 659188 00668 (3 0zes 000°8H 79662 22 S¥0'29 SITLSS (553 Yib HSTIMTIVH SOA3Q - V101
S18'00Z SI8'04Z 055y stz 000’8 - 000's2 - (000°14) 005°29 005’z sz 13NDNVE KOOUTIVE
6L 165'9PL 995'951 osv's - - 00s'03 1 968' sus'sz 00s°z0L 006'28 [ SIN3A3 SOA3A ISIN
we's YeL'bZ SLM'SEZ 009'61 - - 00s'y ozL rc'e 280°T4 S8l 009'98 s ANOHJWAS ¥9
Enyn 9’89t oLLses 00v'9 o8 o0zs 000’ 00Z'y o0z6'L 00v'9z 009'95h 00Z's9 o QUND 3ULVIHL AVMAYONS
%62 yie'sy oLg'sy 006's - - - - 091’2 o5t 000'ss 00z'L ) vu3do ¥9
{(1ss's1) LLb'oR 095'%9 0099 - - - - 08z’ ogr'ol 000'SY 00012 (13 137Iva 49
¥00Z Ad 5002 Ad IWOONI IWOONI IWOON INOINI INOONI IWOONI  IWOINI IWOONI_ 3ONVa SINGAS TIVA SONVIWE0Iu3d SOA 30
ONVIAVA INOINI IWOINI ANIWGINDS  TVORUDANI  L4VMOLNY ALTAON  ONINELYD  FOVHIAIE  3DIAN3S viNZY  -NaLY 400N
AN3A3 IN3AZ aNv 0004 138

$00 ‘08 sunp Bujpug Jee jeas)y
Kewwng jueaz

93%|d $OASQ - OWS

Rpoyny rusiy/uopusALSY AUNOD 1Y - SPIdEY PueID




SMG - DeVos Place (Grand Center)

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

Budget Estimate
E/Y 2005 F/Y 2004 Variance

Salaries - Full Time 1,244,922 1,135,014 (109,908)
Salaries Part Time 747,006 821,924 74,918
Auto Allowance 25,450 25,449 1)
Payroll Taxes 164,003 152,366 (11,637)
Employee Benefits 251,384 216,168 (35,216)
Pension 49,908 27,574 (22,334)
Union Expenses 60,500 69,820 9,320
Allocated Salaries (949,931) (1,005,588) (55,657)

Total Labor Costs 1,593,242 1,442,727 (150,515)
Contracted Security 228,000 161,616 (66,384)
Meetings 32,000 14,493 (17,507)
Meals & Entertainment 14,500 16,530 2,030
Dues & Subscriptions 5,000 4,643 (357
Professional Fees 31,500 44,271 12,771
Employee Training 10,000 8,200 (1,800)
Printing 9,600 20,517 10,917
Advertising 20,000 27,850 7,850
Trash Removal 36,000 32,840 (3,160)
Landscaping 1,000 - (1,000)
Armored Services 2,400 2,251 (149)
Exterminating 6,000 4,800 (1,200)
Cleaning 9,000 4,156 (4,844)
Construction Costs 0 27,410 27,410
Repairs & Maintenance 300,650 137,997 (162,653)
Snow Removal 0 - -
Supplies 190,500 179,706 (10,794)
Corporate Travel 5,000 8,745 3,745
Computer Expenses 65,000 62,723 2,277)
Equipment Rental 6,000 6,033 33
Bank Service Charges 9,000 11,907 2,907
General Liability Insurance 80,451 73,131 (7,320)
Property Insurance 75,000 54,275 (20,725)
Insurance Expense 42,000 41,893 (107)
Local Taxes 0 - -
Printing & Stationary 13,500 13,629 129
Office Supplies 7,500 11,679 4,179
Postage 5,000 3,741 (1,259)
Parking Expense 12,000 18,897 6,897
Telephone 72,000 86,455 14,455
Utilities 1,526,650 1,259,623 (267,027)
Management Fee 237,361 232,252 (5,109)
Incentive Fee 0 - -
Allocated Expenses (10,000) (9,413) 587
Total Materials & Service 3,042,612 2,562,850 (479,762)
Total Indirect Expenses 4,635,854 4,005,577 (630,277)




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

The base fee started with the new contract in F/Y 2002 as $450,000 split evenly between
DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena. This fee is subject to an annual increase based

on the change in the CPI-U. This budget assumes that the increase will be 2.2% for fiscal
year 2005.

The incentive fee is based on benchmark revenues for each of the two facilities. The Van
Andel Arena benchmark is based on the number set in the SMG Managerial Contract
which is subject to the same annual increase as stated above for the base fee. The Devos
Place benchmark is equal to the budgeted total gross revenue for each fiscal year. The
incentive fee based on a percentage of the combined revenues in excess of the combined
benchmark. SMG receives 20% of the first $1 million and 25% above that. In no fiscal
year can the incentive fee exceed that of the base fee.

SMQ is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue
above Expenses for the facilities exceeds the total of $1,635,157 (Van Andel) and the
budgeted figure for DeVos Place.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2005 compared to the
expected fee for F/Y 2004.

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,515,174  (1,388,942) 126,232 (96,630)
Benchmark 1,635,157  (1,388,942) 246,215 1,531
Excess (119,983) - (119,983) (98,161)
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
Base Fee 237,361 237,361 474,722 464,504
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,798,695 3,246,912 8,045,607 7,073,436
Benchmark Revenue 4,430,656 3,246,912 7,677,568 6,716,238
Projected Revenue Increase - - - 357,198
Incentive Percentage 20% 20% 20% 20%
Total Incentive Fee - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 237,361 237,361 474,722 464,504




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place (Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Capital Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

{1}

{1}

Project F/Y 2005 F/Y 2006
Terrazzo Floor Repair 38,000
Hydraulic Seating 190,000
Box Office - Electronic Signing 14,000

Spotlights - Arena 125,000

Banquet Refurbishment - Exterior 100,000
Refinish DeVos Performance Hall Stage Floor 50,000
Total 139,000 378,000

Pending the outcome of the interior work to be performed on DeVos
Performance Hall in the summer months of 2004, and whether or not
it is included as a part of the project, the stage floor of the Theater

will need to be refinished.



SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Management Fee Calculation

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

Position F/Y 2004 F/Y 2005 Change _
General Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Finance 1.00 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 2.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 3.00 3.00 -
Box Office Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 2.00 2.00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 1.00 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 1.00 1.00 -
Maintenance Support 10.00 10.00 -
Operations Manager 2.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 17.00 17.00 -
Director of Sales 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Support 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Event Services 1.00 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 6.00 6.50 0.50
Total 57.00 57.50 0.50



Item IV.c.v.

FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
FROM: Robert White Jana M. Wallace
Kent County City of Grand Rapids
Fiscal Services Director Assistant to the City Manager

SUBJECT: Convention/Arena Authority
FY2005 Budget Request

DATE: June 18,2004

The attached material summarizes the administrative costs of the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority (“the Authority”) for the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2004 and 2005. This
report also contains a “Consolidated Budget Income Statement” for the fiscal years previously noted. The
consolidated statement incorporates the Operating Budgets of the two facilities, as presented by SMG,
with administrative and other expenses of the Authority.

The first table, attached hereto, summarizes the anticipated revenues and expenditures for the Authority’s
administrative budget. Footnotes are included where deemed appropriate. This table provides a
comparison of the budget as reviewed by the full Board on May 26 with what is now recommended by
the staff, dated June 16. The changes from earlier versions of the recommended budget include increases
in net facility operating revenues, elimination of FY2005 funding for the DID assessment and deferral of
several capital improvement projects. These changes were incorporated into the recommended budget in
order to produce a net excess of revenues over expenses for the administrative budget of the Authority.

The second table following this correspondence summarizes, on a consolidated basis, the Authority’s
anticipated revenues, expenditures and changes in net assets the current fiscal and upcoming fiscal year
budgets. These figures have been updated based on SMG’s June 16, 2004 revenue updates. It is projected
that the Authority will end the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004 with a deficit approximating $240,000
and ending with an Unrestricted Net Assets balance of $4.7 million. The Fiscal Year 2005 Budget request
incorporates, on a consolidated basis, revenues and expenses totaling approximately $8.6 million, with a
net income before depreciation balance anticipated at $250,052, leaving an estimated June 30, 2005
Unrestricted Net Assets balance of $5 million.

It is recommended by staff that the “Consolidated Budget Income Statement,” which summarizes the
detailed information previously submitted by the Facility Manager and administrative expenses as
submitted by Authority staff, be adopted as the Authority’s Operating Budget for its fiscal year ending
June 30, 2005.

Staff will be available if there are any questions concerning this material.



Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Operating/Capital Replacement Budget
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2004 & 2005

FY2004 FY2005 Requested
Budget Estimate May 26 June 16
Revenues:
SMG Transfers
Facility Operation (Net) $ (134,901) $ 42,109 ® $ (60,864) $ 126,232
Utility Reimbursement 1,962,466 1,962,466 2,283,450 2,283,450
1,827,565 2,004,575 2,222,586 2,409,682
DeVos Place Parking 108,163 108,163 646,500 646,500
Land Lease 107,000 107,000 123,000 @ 123,000
Interest on Investments 32,000 22,000 22,000 22,000
Miscellaneous 8,000 20,000 15,000 15,000
2,082,728 2,261,738 3,029,086 3,216,182
Expenditures:
Utilities 1,962,466 1,962,466 2,283,450 @ 2,283,450
Parking Management 93,273 67,151 257,011 @ 257,011
Pedestrian Safety 95,000 61,746 86,000 @ 86,000
Administration 239,396 225,145 233,769 © 195,669
Capital Replacement 185,000 185,000 372,000 144,000
Capital Construction 1,000,000 - - -
3,575,135 2,501,508 3,232,230 2,966,130
Net Excess (Deficit) (1,492,407) (239,770) (203,144) 250,052
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 5,000,599 5,000,599 4,760,829 4,760,829
Net Assets - End of Year $ 3,508,192 $ 4,760,829 $ 4,557,685 $ 5,010,881

Notes:
@
Net reported on May 18th, at deficit of ($96,630)

R.J. White

6/18/2004 Page 1



Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authorities
Operating/Capital Replacement Budget

Notes to Financial Statement:

m

2

€))

@

%)

The Authority entered into a "Parking Operating and Maintenance" agreement with the City on January
28, 2004. The term of the agreement presently runs through June 30, 2005. The facility first came
available for use on January 23, 2004 with 330 spaces. Additional portions of the facility will become
available over the course of the next several months with a final total 690 spaces available by March,
2005. The current estimated FY2005 user rates are noted as follows:

FY2004 FY200S (est.)
Monthly $ 125.75 $ 128.00
Monthly/GOVT/SMG 40.00 35.00
Half-hour rate 0.95 0.95
Daily 8.75 8.75
Event 6.25 6.25

In November, 2002 the Authority entered into a "Parking Operating and Maintenance Agreement"
with the City of Grand Rapids for a 149 space surface parking lot located immediately south of the

'VanAndel Arena. The term of this contract runs through June 30, 2010. The City-Auto Parking

System pays the Convention Arena Authority a "Usage Fee" which is adjusted each year, at fiscal year
end, based on actual revenues and expenses generated by the facility.

The Authority pays all electricity, steam, natural gas and water/sewer bills for the VanAndel Arena
and DeVos Place.

The Convention Arena Authority participates with the City-Auto Parking System and City-Downtown
Development Authority in funding of "Pedestrian Safety" during events at the VanAndel Arena and
DeVos Place. The total proposed budget for this activity during FY2005 amounts to $237,163. Based
on a formula previously approved by the parties, the Convention Arena assumes liability for 36.28%
of the cost.

The administrative portion of the budget provides for staff wages/benefits, accounting/auditing
services, liability insurance premiums, legal services, downtown improvement district-special
assessments, and other miscellaneous.

R.J.White
6/18/2004 Page 2



Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Consolidated Budget Income Statement
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2004 & 2005

FY2004 FY2005
Estimate Request
Operating Revenues:
Event, Direct - VanAndel Arena $1,151,789 $1,278,171
- DeVos Place 1,566,979 1,987,844
Ancillary Income - VanAndel Arena 1,512,076 1,535,524
- DeVos Place 878,253 1,092,068
Other - VanAndel Arena 2,045,193 1,985,000
- DeVosPlace 111,052 108,163
- Parking 215,163 769,500
7,480,505 8,756,270
Operating Expenses/Appropriations:
Facility Management - VanAndel Arena 3,270,122 3,283,521
- DeVos Place 3,953,111 4,635,854
Parking 67,151 257,011
Capital Repair 185,000 144,000
Administrative 286,891 281,669
7,762,275 8,602,055
Operating Income Before Depreciation (281,770) 154,215
Non-Operating Revenue (Interest) 42,000 37,000
Net Income (239,770) 191,215
Net Assets, Unrestricted, Beginning of Year 5,000,599 4,760,829
Net Assets, Unrestricted, End of Year $ 4,760,829 $4,952,044 @

Notes:

) Premium seating, advertising, other.
@ Including a minimum Operating Reserve of $3M and an estimated June 30, 2005
Capital Replacement/Improvement Reserve of $2,010,881.

R.J.White
6/18/2004 Page 3



-

2
£
83

08T$ DRd

DR

ObIE Dre 0918 Dru 00¢s Ore | oar

051§

0bT$ DI

VISITING | S48 | iy cumoe

erice $120

00Z$ Diw 0928 i

caVIN UINAS
COLLEGE é&LEGE

L

muce $100 | eeace $100

@y 0!

‘ m a0
QIVHOYUO
(e} e]

© e
£ t
M AQUINAS

JVLINOd
ANVYO

PRICE $200

GRAND RAPIDS
FIRE
DEPARTMENT

PRICE $40

0bT$ D

PRICE $320

pav $75.00

SPEND A NIGHT
IN LUXURY

o
3
Y
&

§ | GRAND RAPIDS

LEONARDO
DA VINCI'S “
HORSE

PRICE $40




TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT

THIS TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as
of June 43 , 204, to be effective as of June 4 , 2004 (the
“Effective Date”), between Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the
“CAA”), a Mjchigan Authority created under Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1999,
and Cgl t&lxi RefRENVEURs' ORG. | a shuoed orG. ot GVSU_

(“Licensee’).

RECITALS

A. The CAA owns certain trademarks listed on Exhibit A attached hereto for use in
connection with the operation of its business, which list may be updated from time to time by the
CAA by written notice to Licensee (collectively, the “Marks™).

B. Licensee desires to use the Marks in connection with the operation of its business
and the CAA is willing to grant to Licensee a non-exclusive right to use the Marks for such
purpose, upon and subject to the terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the foregoing Recitals, the mutual covenants contained herein, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. License. Subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, the CAA hereby
grants to Licensee a non-exclusive right and license to use the Marks in connection with the
operation of its business for the purposes and geographic area set forth in Schedule B.

(a)  Limitation of Grant. Licensee shall submit to the CAA all proposed uses
of the Marks for prior written approval. Licensee shall not make any use of the Marks that has
not received such prior written approval from the CAA. All rights not specifically granted or
licensed to Licensee are reserved to the CAA.

(b)  No Ownership Interest. Licensee agrees that nothing herein shall give to it
any right, title, or interest in the Marks, except the right to use the Marks in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement, and that the Marks are the sole property of the CAA. Any and all
goodwill accruing from Licensee’s use of the Marks shall inure to the sole and exclusive benefit
of the CAA.

(c) No Questions or Objections. Licensee agrees that it will not question or
object to the validity of the Marks or to the exclusive ownership and right of the CAA with
respect to the Marks.

(d)  No Obligation to Maintain. The CAA shall not have any obligation to
maintain any of the Marks.




(e) License Fee. Licensee agrees to pay a one-time license fee of Twenty-five
Dollars ($25.00). CAA, while recognizing the greater value of its Marks, agrees to accept this
sum as full satisfaction and in support of the scholarship program.

2. Term and Termination.

(a) Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect unless terminated in
accordance with this Section 2. The major marketing of the game is anticipated to be the next
12 months from the Effective Date.

(b) Termination Due to Breach. Either party shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement if the other party breaches any term of this Agreement and fails to cure the
breach within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice from the non-breaching party.

(c) Termination At-Will. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon
sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other party.

(d) Accrued Liabilities and Obligations. If this Agreement is terminated
under any provision herein, neither Licensee nor the CAA shall be relieved of any of its
liabilities and obligations accruing up to the time of termination. Any and all rights acquired by
Licensee pursuant to this Agreement will vest solely and exclusively in the CAA upon a
termination of this Agreement and Licensee shall execute any documents necessary to effectuate
this provision.

(e) Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, Licensee
shall (a) immediately discontinue all uses of all Marks and any term confusingly similar thereto
or a colorable imitation thereof; (b) delete the same from its corporate and/or business names if
previously included, and (c) destroy or deliver to the CAA all materials bearing any of the
Marks.

3. Quality Control. Licensee agrees that all products and services offered in
connection with the Marks shall be of a nature and quality commensurate with the nature and
quality of the CAA’s corresponding products and services. The CAA may monitor products and
services offered in connection with the Marks and the specific methods and manner of
Licensee’s uses of the Marks. Such monitoring shall be allowed on the premises of Licensee at
any time and from time to time during normal business hours, upon reasonable notice to
Licensee. The CAA may also inspect any business or financial records of Licensee that concern
or affect the use of the Marks or the products or services offered by Licensee in connection with
its use of the Marks. All monitoring and inspection procedures will be conducted under
appropriate confidentiality restrictions. If the CAA, in its sole discretion, determines that a
particular usage of any of the Marks by Licensee is not proper or appropriate or is in any way
harmful to the Marks or the CAA’s business or reputation, Licensee shall, immediately upon
receiving written notice thereof from the CAA, suspend the particular usage of the Marks
described in such notice and shall not reinstitute such usage until it has made modifications to
such usage that have been approved in writing by the CAA.

4. Warranty. The CAA makes no warranties with respect to the Marks and
Licensee’s use of the Marks.



5. Protection; Enforcement. Except as set forth herein, the CAA shall have the
sole and exclusive right to enforce its trademark and service mark rights against any third parties
in relation to or in connection with the Marks. The CAA shall have the sole right to control any
trademark or service mark enforcement actions. Licensee agrees to execute any and all
agreements and documents that the CAA deems reasonably necessary for it to evidence
ownership of and to obtain and maintain protection for the Marks. If Licensee becomes aware of
a third party’s use of the Marks within the United States, then Licensee shall notify the CAA of
such use. If, within 30 days after the CAA receives notice from Licensee of the existence of a
third party using a mark confusingly similar to the Marks, the CAA does not assert its rights or
indicates that it will not enforce any of its trademark or service mark rights with regard to Marks
vis-a-vis such third party, then Licensee, at its sole expense, shall have the right to protect the
Marks that Licensee is at that time actually using. Both Licensee and the CAA agree, at the
requester’s sole expense, to cooperate with each other in connection with any enforcement action
brought by either party.

6. Injunctive Relief. Licensee expressly acknowledges and agrees that the CAA
will be irreparably harmed, and monetary damages will be inadequate, if Licensee breaches this
Agreement or otherwise makes use of the Marks except as authorized by this Agreement and
that, in the event of any breach or other unauthorized use by Licensee, the CAA is entitled, in
addition to all other remedies, to injunctive relief, including temporary, preliminary and
permanent injunctive relief to stop the breach or other unauthorized use.

7. Miscellaneous Provisions.

(a) Amendments. Any amendment or supplement to this Agreement shall be
effective only if in a writing signed by all of the parties hereto.

(b) Applicable Law. This Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties
hereto, and any claims and disputes relating thereto, shall be subject to and governed by the laws
of the State of Michigan.

(c) Assignments. This Agreement shall not be assigned, sublicensed, or
otherwise transferred by Licensee without the express written consent of the CAA.

(d) Indemnification. Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold the CAA
harmless from any and all claims made by third parties against the CAA and any resulting
liabilities, costs, and expenses arising out of Licensee’s use of the Marks.

(e) No Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to place
the parties in the relationship of partners or joint venturers or principal and agent. Licensee shall
have no power to obligate or bind the CAA in any manner whatsoever, and the CAA shall have
no power to obligate or bind Licensee in any manner whatsoever.

® No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the sole
benefit of the CAA and Licensee, and their respective successors and permitted assigns, and no
other person or entity, unless specifically set forth herein, shall gain any rights or remedies
pursuant to this Agreement as a third party beneficiary or otherwise.




(8) Notices. All notices or other communications required to be given or
made to any party hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be given or made when
properly addressed and delivered by certified mail, postage prepaid, or by overnight courier to
such party at the addresses listed below, which addresses may be changed from time to time by a
party by giving written notice thereof to the other parties:

() If to the CAA, to:

Ms. Susan Waddell

Administrative Manager

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
130 West Fulton Street

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

(i) If to Licensee, to:

Colltude. Srrerioniues’ ORCnAMZat

GUSUL.
GOl b, FuL
GRang RAMIDS w 49853 -35¢C_

(h) Successors in Interest. Each and all of the covenants, agreements, terms,
and provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties
and, to the extent permitted by this Agreement, their respective successors and assigns.

) Waiver. Failure or delay by any party to enforce compliance with any
term or condition of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of such term or condition. A
waiver of any breach or default pursuant to this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any
subsequent breach or default.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date specified
in the preamble to this Agreement.

Co“fﬁll"ﬁ. Z\’hﬁﬂwufs' i Grand Rapids-Kent County

Licensee Convention/Arena Authority

Qanssf] 5 Midtka
By: {) ael T. /”H‘ka By:
Its: (¥adug. Advisor Its:

991152-1




EXHIBIT A

MARKS

VAN ANDEL ARENA
IMAGE OF VAN ANDEL ARENA BUILDING
DEVOS PLACE
IMAGE OF DEVOS PLACE BUILDING



SCHEDULE B

SCOPE OF LICENSE

B.1. The Marks will be used in the following way:

The Van Andel Arena will be pictured on the middle of the Grand Rapids Monopoly
board, which will be produced by the Collegiate Entrepreneurs’ Organization.

The Van Andel Arena will be pictured on the outside of the Grand Rapids Monopoly box.

The likeness of the Van Andel Arena will be sculpted into a playable pewter token, for
use with the Grand Rapids Monopoly board game.

The DeVos Place will be pictured on the middle of the Grand Rapids Monopoly board,
which will be produced by the Collegiate Entrepreneurs’ Organization.

The likeness of the Van Andel Arena will be sculpted into a playable pewter token, for
use with the Grand Rapids Monopoly board game.

The DeVos Place will be pictured on the outside of the Grand Rapids Monopoly box.

B.2. The Marks will be used in the following geographic area:

Although mainly marketed in the Western Michigan area (local Meijer stores), a small
percentage if games will be available for sale on etailgifts.com, a internet site that prides
itself on having all Monopoly games available for sale.



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

Item VI
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Jun 16 | Available
Thur, Jun 17 | Available
Fri, Jun 18 Available
Sat, Jun 19 Simon & Garfunkel AH Arena 8:00 AM Show marking floor
9:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
7:00 PM Doors
8:10 PM Show (no intermission)
10:30 PM Load-out
Simon & Garfunkel MW Banquet C/D | 5:00 AM Set-up
7A-9P Crew catering
Sun, Jun 20 Available
Mon, Jun 21 SMG MW Banquet C 12:00 PM Set-up
Tue, Jun 22 SMG MW Banquet C 12P-1:30P Tour luncheon
Wed, Jun 23 Available
Thur, Jun 24 | Available
Fri, Jun 25 Available
Sat, Jun 26 Available
Sun, Jun 27 Available
Mon, Jun 28 Available
Tue, Jun 29 DP Fox MW Banquet C/D | 6:00 AM Storage; offices being redone
Wed, Jun30 | DP Fox MW Banquet C/D | 6:00 AM Storage; offices being redone
Thur, Jul 1 DP Fox MW Banquet C/D | 6:00 AM Storage; offices being redone
Fri, Jul 2 DP Fox MW Banquet C/D | 6:00 AM Storage; offices being redone
Sat, Jul 3 DP Fox MW Banquet C/D | 6:00 AM Storage; offices being redone
Sun, Jul 4 DP Fox MW Banquet C/D | 6:00 AM Storage; offices being redone
Mon, Jul 5 DP Fox MW Banquet C/D | 6:00 AM Storage; offices being redone
Tue, Jul 6 DP Fox MW Banquet C/D | 6:00A-12P Storage; offices being redone
Wed, Jul 7 Incubus AH Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Thur, Jul 8 Available
Fri, Jul 9 Van Halen SL Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Sat, Jul 10 Available
Sun, Jul 11 Available
Mon, Jul 12 Available
Tue, Jul 13 Available
Wed, Jul 14 Available
Thur, Jul 15 Available
Fri, Jul 16 Available
Sat, Jul 17 Available
Sun, Jul 18 Available




¥0/L1/9

[[eH 9ouruLIolIag SOASd = Ad
O~V slleH MqUxgd = O-V HA

eary A1s[jen pueid = DO
H-V swooy SunssA JooIsA0 = H-V O
J-V swooy Sunespy A19[[en pueln = J-v O

4AVLS OL N4dO SLNO MvIyd
SIARNY

ISNOJS FONFIANV
NI-QvOT NOILONAOdd
TVSIVIHTI

NOILOIJSNI TI1d
NI-QvO1aNvd

NI-GVOT NOLLONAOYd
ONINNL ONVId

ONILITIN NOLLONAONd
SINOOYLSTI NINAV AID0TINN
o'gv

SIWOOY ONISSTIA ADOINN
D% V 301490 MOHS JO0INN
WOOYLSTd

TIVH LIGIHXd JAJ0TINN
STIVH LIdIHXd JJ0INN
SINOOYLSTI DD JAD0TINN
SOOI DL DD TTV JDO0TINN
SY00J OO M ® I HD0TINN

000y :2ouepusny pajewrsg o1 STARNY 49IVLS

-0t-¢

de
d9-d¢
doe:-di

d1-dzl
VOI1-v8
V6-V8
V8

Vog:L

LA

JH3
OHd
gHd
gHYa
gH3
YV HA
gH3
V 4D1440 MOHS

S4IVdS TIV

NOLLVIOJJOD HOUNHD NVATISIM

81 INNM TId

«JNOL ALIS,, ¥THIONV
HONOYHL MIVM OVINVA
NI-avOT1 NOILONAO¥d
aQvaHIdAO

O HA ‘d HE ‘V HA N4dO
SINOCYULSTY HY JDOINN
1 Q HI ‘d HA ‘V HA JAD0INN

dL
ds-dZ
d11-d¢

dog-1

SHOVdS 1TV
gHa

NOLLVIOJIIOD HOUNHO NVATISIM

L1 AN "SUNHL

91 AN 'dIM

WOOY TAMILS
ONILIIN
91 :9duepualyy pajewunsy LS | ADFHD INTAT-TIL/NO0Y 138

de-dl
d1-vol
VO01-v8

VO

NOILVIOOSSV
HdVISANVT % AYISUNN NVOIHOIN

1NO FJAONW

M2 d DD A00T
ONLLIIN

ARV S1S4nNS
MBI ODAO0INN
b\ 4 H-O0 O JD0TINN
001 :eouepuany pajewunsy | /€ SFARRIV J4V.LS

doe-11-dI1
dll
dil-dL

d9

dog:§

H-DO

ONILLIIN
SNOLLATOS HLTVIH FILNVIVNO

1NO FJAON

YVNINGS

AVNINGS

SJYooa

TIVO VI /NOILVILSIOT
0GL :90UBpUINY pajewINSH Ely dN 13§

d0£:9-d0¢g:S
d0g:s-d1
VS 11-voe:8
VOE:L

Vi

V9

I-v O

AVNINGS ADVIL NV

S1INNS "SANL

NOLLONAULSNOD/SNOILVIAIO X NOLLONNI

JNIL

WO

JLNIAT

ALVA

00 AVHA — ATAdHIM
HOVId SOAZJ




v0/L1/9

[[eH 2ournIofiad soA9d = Ad
OV S[EHIqUxd = O-V HA

Bary A1s[[en pueln = Do
H-V swooy Sunssp Joo[A0 = H-V O
-V swooy Suyas| A1s[[en pueid = J-V O

“IOOHDS AVANNS V0£:6-VOE'S 4-VOD
SINOOYLSTI NINQV JD0INN
fox:n
SINOOY ONISSTAA MDOTINN
D% V 01110 MOHS MD0TINN
WOOYLSTY
TTH LIEITHXAE JYO0INN
STTVH LI9IHXd MO0INN
SINOOYLSTY DD MD0TINN
SINO0Y DL DO TV IDO0INN
Y00 DO M % T MDOINN
000 :9oUEpUSHY pajewilsy SAARIYY JIVI1S VOE:L SADVIS TIV NOLLVIOJJ0D HOUNHD NVATSIM 0Z ANNS 'NNS
1dvdaa 1Iv
SY00d DO M 2 IAD01 dog:01 SHOVdS 1TV
ONILLFAW NOILONAOYd dOE:6 V 901410 MOHS
ATIVI ONINJJO ds1:6-d8 aH3
NOISSHIS ;1 dL-d9 OHE
ANOWTIZD ONINALO LIGIHXA d01-dv V¥ HY
SNOISSAS LNOYMVTId dT1-VoeE: 11 VoD
NI-QVOT YOILLAIHXA dr-dot V Ha
SNOLLVN 40 TVAILST4 VO£ 11-V01 dHa
€HH Y04 FATIIV SLSAND V0£:6 dHa
SNOISSIS LNOMVTId V0£:6-V0E:8 AV 0D
ONILITN NOLLONAOYd V3 V 901440 MOHS
SINOOULSTY NINAV MD0INN
o'gav
SINOOY ONISSTIA MDOINN
% V 01440 MOHS MOOINN
WOOYLSTY
TIVH LIFIHXd JYO0INN
STIVH LI9IHXd MO0 INN
SIWOOULSTY DO ADOINN
SO0 DL 99 TTV JD0INN
YOO DO M % T ID0TINN
000 :9duBpUSHY pajewunsy SAARIYV 44VIS VOE:L SFOVAS 11V NOLLVIOIIOD HOYNHD NVATSIM 61 ANNS "LVS
1NO-aQvOoT1aNve d0¢:11-d0g:01 g Ha
QVIHIIAO € HA N9dO
SY00da
DD LSAM % LSV 00T
1¥Vdaa s1sano do€:01 SAOVAS TIV
HOIH
TN 2 YIANIA LIFONOD do€:01-d6 g Ha
SNOISSIS LNOMVTId do1-ds¥iL VOO
13NONVE NOLLVIEI 13O dStL-d0g:S aHg
€ HY OL FONV.LLINGV docy aHa
NI-AVO1 SLISIHXH ds-dv Vv HI

00T IVHA — A TIH9IM
HOVId SOAZJ




vO/L1/9

[IeH 2oueuLIofad SOAdd = Ad
IV S[leH 1Qyxg = O-V HH

vary Asf[ep pueln =HH
H-V Swooy Sunay Yoo[1eA0 = H-V O
J-V swooy unady A19[[eD pueln = J-V D

000¢_:30UepuUSLY patewisy

AVMAMNS

ON-SYOLVATI NO N¥NL
SYOLVTIVIST NO NMNL
NOISS3S .S

NAdO SLISIHXA

Avagd

NOISSHS 4,V

ONILITN NOLLONAOAd
SINOOYULSTY NINAV MD0TINN
o'day

SINOOY ONISSTIA ADOINN
2% V 21430 MOHS JD0INN
WOOILSTY

TTH LIFIHX3 MO0INN
STIVH LIF9IHXd MD0INN
SINOOYLSTY OO MDOINN
SINO0Y DLIN DO TTV JDOTINN
Y00 DO M % T ADOINN
SIARDIY JAV1S

di
dot-t-dl
do1-vol

VS1:01-VSti6
VO0e11-voe:8
V8

VoL

JHH

VHYE

09

JH3

V 401440 MOHS

S3IVdIS TIV

NOILLVIOIOD HOANHD NVATISIM

CTANMS "SINL

000p :29UEPUINY ParaunST

Lavdad T1v

SY00A DO M B TAD0T
ATIVY ONINEAE

AVIIg

NOISSHS quf

NE4O SLIGIHXH

Avaid

NOISSES o7

ONILFIN NOLLONAOYd
SINOOYLSTI NINAV JOOINN
o'gv

SINOO0Y ONISSTYA JD0TINN
2% V 301440 MOHS ¥D0INN
WOOYLSTY

TTH LI9IHXE ¥D0INN

STIVH LISIHX3 YOO INN
SWOOYLSTY 59 MDOINN
SIWOOY DL 99 TTV XOOINN
SI00d 5O M B T DOTINN
SIARIYV 4IVLS

dog:0t
ds1:8-dL
ds¥t-ds1:T
dog-d1
d01-Vol
VS1:01-VSt-6
VOEg:11-V0e'8
V8

VOgL

S$AOVd4S TIV
dH3

19,9)

JHE

V HA

05

OHH

V 401440 MOHS

SAOVIS 1TV

NOLLVIOJY0D HOINHI NVATSIM

12 INNSL 'NOW

yvdaa 11v

SI00A OO M 2 D001
ATIVI ODNINTALT

N3dO SLIgIHXd

SY00J OO M 2 3 AD0TINN
SYOOA OO M ¥4 D01
JIHSYOM DNINIOW

dog:01
dog:ot
ds1:8-dL
d01-ds
dogy

A48
VI1I-VSt:6

SHOVIS TIV

gHd
VH3

g Hia

Y002 AVIA — ATATIM
HOVId SOAZ




¥0/L1/9

[TeH 2oueurIoyrad soAdd = Ad
OV SIfeH 1qUxg = O~V HA

BaIy A1o[[eD puely =DHOH
H-V swooy Sunasiy Joo[eA0 = H-V O
4-V swooy Sunasy A1s[[e pueid = -V D

0001 :30UEpUSNY pIEILNSY

a1

dfl L3S NOILVILSIOTI
SLIGIHXH NI JAQON

Vi
VL

09
24

0dX3d SIINAYTS NAIT IN

00§ :30UepUaRY parEwnSY

AV

NI JAONW JALVMINTd
/ NI JAONW JOLIdIHX4A
NI JAON (MOLVI00dA) IS

d9-d¢1
dz1-v9

V Hi

NOILVIOOSSV

INFWIOVNVIN ¥3Id ALITVND IN YT AN "SANHL

ar

JI1490 MOHS dN L3S

[4

J 3OI4:10 MOHS

OdXd SHIIAYAS NI IN

000 :30UEpUIVY pItewnsy

SAANTONOD LNO-AVO1
LYvdad 1s4no TIv
1No-avol
1NO-avoT1NOILONAOYd
YOO DO M ® D01
ATIVY ONINGAT

LITULS OL AV SYOLVATTI
SYOLVTVOSH 440 NiNL
1NO-avo1 NOLLONAOYd
1NO-avoTdOLISIHXA
1NO-avo1NOILONAOdd
SONILFIN SNONVD VIIVY
Avaag

AVMANS

ON-SYOLVAVTH NO N¥NL
SYOLVTIVOSA NO NiNL
NOISSIS ;L

NEdO SLISIHXT

Avadd

NOISSAS ;9

DONILLIIN NOLLONAOAd
SIWOOULSTY NINQY JD0INN
o'dy

SIWOOY DNISSTIA ADOINN
0% V 301440 MOHS JD0INN
NOOYULST

TIVH LIFIHXT AD0TINN
STIVH LISIHXA YD0INN
SIWOOYLSTY DO JD0INN
SIOOY DL DD TV ADOINN
SYOOA DO M 2 T ADOINN
STARNY VLS

A4}

d0l
dsv6
dsv'8
dsv'8
dSvi8-dL

do
doey

dv
dOg:-dot €
d$H:T-ds1:T

dl

dOog-dl
di-vol
VS1:01-VSt:6
VOE11-V0E:8
V8

Yog:L

SFOVIS TIV
Y HH
gH3

gHa

JH4

V HE
1-v5HD
0D

JH3

VY HA

05

OH3

V 401490 MOHS

SFOVdS 1TV

NOLLVIOIOD HOUNHD NVATSIM ECINNS 'gIm

SLAYVAEId 4IVLS

SI00A OO M 2 D01
ATIVE ONINTAT

LITALS OL JRIVd SYOLVAT 1T
SYOLVIVOST 140 NUNL
SONILIIN SNONVD VIIV
AVIIY

d0g:01
dst:8-dL

d9
dog:-dog:€
dS¥:T-ds1:T

SIOVIS TIV
gHda

4-v DD
(3]

Y00T dVHA — ATAdIM
HOVId SOAZT




v0/L1/9

[TeH 2ousunIojdg SOA2d = AQ
OV SIIEH 1qiyxd = O~V HHA

BAIY AIS[[eD) PURI) = DO
H-V swooy] Sunssq Joo[1oAQ = H-V O
4-V swooy 3unsay A19[[eD pueld) = J-V O

ST ANNSL 'NOW
1NO IAON J0LVI0O3d di-vs NOLLVIOOSSY
AV LNO FAON JOLIdIHXT dCI-V.L VH3 INFWIOVNVIN ¥99d ALITVNO IN LT ANNS 'NNS
A /ONIONVA /LINONVE odL 1vVO
SdOHSXIOM dST-dStiT vO
SdOHSXRIOM dSyT-dl VO
SdOHSRIOM Veii1-vol VD
NAdO SLIGIHXH dE-Vog:6 o X: |
SJOHSIOM VSP6-vVSi8 VO
0001 :2ouepudlly pajeuinsy £l NOLLVYLSIOTA VOE:L DD QOdXH STOIAYIS TJLI IN
1NO JAON daLVMEN1d V1-d0g:01
NOILONV
ANV 19NONVE ANVID d0g01-dL (yuoN) v HA
ANOH TVID0S dL-d9 (quoN) v HA
SMIVMY ANYAAIXVL dv (1seq) v HY
SYVNINGS [ (138 - 4] avo
SYVNINES d0e+-vOl (pnos) g HY NOILLVIOOSSV
00ST ‘9ouUepuUMNY pajewuysyg AV OdXd TIVLALIHM dS-V6 (ynog) vHA INFWIOVNVIN ¥99a ALITVNO IN 97 ANNS "LVS
SYOANIA/M INOH AddVH d0¢:L-d0t:S jo): |
SJOHSIOM dOg:p-d€ J-vo
SJOHSXIOM dStT-dsSi:l VO
NddO SLIgIXd dS1:1-VOl od
DNINIVYL SJI d-vé6 D0
0001 :dduepusyy pajewinsy a1 NOLLVILSIOFTIY VOE:L (373 OdXd SIOIAYIS AL IN
YANNIQ FNODTIM d0€:01-d40¢9 (yuoN) v HY
OdXd TIVLALIHM d0€:$-VOoI (pnos) vV HA
NAdO NOILVYLSIONY VO0£:6 (379 NOILVIDOSSV
00S¢ :aouepuspy pjewusy | MV NI JAOW JOLIIHXH VOE:6-V0E:9 VHA INTWIOVNVIN ¥99d ALI'TVNO IN ST ANNSL TI
01 dN AOId NOLLVLIAT] dzl S3OVdS 11V NOLLVIOJI0D HOYNHD NVATISIM
TANLLS d9-d0€:S itiv0-€-9 NOYA AIONVHD ILVA
ONILIINW d0g:s-dy ONILIIN
§€ :90UEpUSlY pIjElInSy 1S SA00d dg VO FOYOd ASVL AWONODT MAN
SdOHSYIOM dS1:y-dShT VO
WASI NOLLDITd dst:l HLOOd VASIN
SAOHSIOM d0g:Z-d1 i4vD
DL TIONNOD/NIVYL 44 IN d1 40
DL "O0SSV WA ALVLS IN V0¢:01 40
DI 44 JOUd IN Vot:01 30
DL SNE SYOLONJYLSNI A1 IN VSI6 HO
YANIVIL FHL NIVIL SOI di-vé6 DO

Y007 dVdA — ATAHIM
HOVId SOAET




0/L1/9

[[eH 2ourunoyiad soAsd = AQ
O-V s[leHMqyxd = D-V HH

vary A1sj[eD pueln = DD
H-V swooy SunasiA JoOo[RAQ =H-V O
d-V swooy Sunssy A19[[eD puelD = -V D

Z1 AN 'NOW
11 AN NAS
1NO IAON Vi-dll SY4LHONVA
AV ONILFIN d11-vOl V HA S.gOf 40 YIAAO TYNOILLVNIZLNI 01 A0 "LVS
SY41HONVA
AV ONILIIN d8-vol V HA $.80f 40 YIAQIO0 TYNOLLYNYFLNI 6 A0 T
ONILFIN d8-dt1 SYALHONVA
AV NI SJAON dz71-v8 V H3 S.4O0f 4O YTIAIO TVNOLLVNIFLNI 8 ATl "SYNHL
L ATINC "gIM
9 ATI0[ "SdNL
®AVAITOH AddVH ANV FIVS V HAVH HAISOTO AV SADIIIO DS S AT 'NOW
12g AMSQIT SY3 UO UINLIM SPIOM-
«Joiay sueqequl
ay} [[e ojun pue| 3 {[e noySnosy; AUIQI[ ULE[I01d,, i1 AVA SONIANIJIANI ¥ AI0(f 'NANS
£ AN °LYS
C AN TId
$T :3dUBpusny pajewrnsy ONILIIN Vo1 V 921440 MOHS ONILIIW ALTIVS I ATI0( "SYNHL
0€ INN( "aIm
dog:11-d11
1NO IAON dtl
SYoOA M 2 9 9D AO0T dIl1-dL
ONLLIIN d9
ATV S183NO
SY00d M % 3 DD JOOTINN
g-V O JAD0TINN ONILITIN
001 :9duepuayy pajeunsg 1 STARNIY J4VLS d0¢:s avo SNOLLNTOS HL'TVAH dIILNVIVND 6 INAS "SANL

00T AVHA — ATIHIM
HOVId SOAZT




FACRGOMLRFT

JUN 2004

23 -
24 -
28 -
25 -
27 -
28 -
27 -
3¢ -

WET
THU
FRI
5AT
SUM
HON
TUE
WET

JUt 2004

ot -
02 -
63 -
04 -
65 -
06 -
07 -
48 -
69 -
1 -
1 -
12 -
13 -
¢ -
15 -
i -
17 -
18 -
15 -
2 -
21 -
23 -
24 -
25 -
2 -
7 -
28 -
29 -
0 -

-

THY
FRI
SAT
SU
MCH
TUE
WED
THU
FEI
9AT
SUN
HoN
TUE
MED
THU
FRI
gatT
SUN
HON
TUE
WED
THU
FRT
arT
Suk
i
TUE
JED
THL
FRI
SAT

AliG 2004

ol -
22 -
¢3 -
04 -
05 -
06 -
07 -
(3 -
07 -
i0 -
i1 -
12 -
13 -
14 -

SUN
KON
TUE
WED
THU
FRI
cAT
SN
KON
TUE
KETH
THY
FRI
SAT

ARENA

CONCERY

COMCERT

CONCERY

FAMILY &
FANILY §

CORVENTT

CONCERT

CONCERT
CONCERT
CONCERT

£l

[nl

{13

]
{1

tCl

B

{7

wl

£rl

Fromater Availabilily Repord

SRAND RAFINS COHFLEX

G&/17/704  Fooz!



FAC,KOGH.RET
AUG 2004
15 - Sui
16 - KO
i7 - TUE
1B - WED
1% - THU
20 - FRI
21 - BAT
22 - Sk
23 - 4
24 - TUE
25 - WED
26 - THI
27 - FRIL
28 ~ BAT
29 - Sud
3¢ - MON
- TUE
SEP 2004
01 - WED
02 ~ THU
03 - FRI
04 - SAT
05 - Sun
06 - HIN
07 ~ TUE
0B ~ WED
G67 - THU
16 - FRIL
11 - SAT
12 - SN
i3 ~ MO
14 - TUE
15 ~ WED
14 - THY
17 - FRI
18 ~ SAT
19 - §UN
20 - MON
21 ~ TUE
22 - WED
33 - THY
24 - FR1
25 - GAT
26 - SUN
27 ~ il
28 - TUE
29 - WED
30 - THU
pCY 2004
M - FRI
02 - SAT

¢

SiN

SRENA

CONCERT

BANBUEY

COMCERT

CONCERT

CONCERT

&PORTS

COMCERT

CONCERT

SFORTS
COMEERT

+ FAHILY §
- FOMILY §

FAMILY §

- FEMILY &
+ FAMILY §

FAMTLY §
FAMILY §
FARTLY §
FARILY §

FARILY 5
FAKTLY §
FARILY §

fnl

[L1

{1
[Tl

[Tl

imn

(7l
[n
£o1
5]
rul
51
tni
[xa
(#iD
ol
Cnl

Lo
ol
T

Frometer Availabilily Reporl

GRANDI RAPIDS CIMFLEX

G6/17/704  Foget



FAC,ROCN.RFT

GET 2004

04 ~ HOW
05 - TUE
06 - UYER
07 - THE
08 - FRI
07 - GAT
10 - SN
11 - MO
12 - TUE
13 - WED
14 - THY
15 - FRI
14 - BaT
17 ~ SUN
18 - HON
19 - TUE
20 - WED
21 - Tl
22 - FRI
23 - 5AT
24 - Sy
23 - HN
26 - TUE
27 - WD
23 - ThY
29 - IRl
30 - BAT
31 - SUN
NOV 2004
01 - MON
02 - TUE
03 - HEW
04 - THY
05 ~ FRI
06 - SAT
47 - Sult
08 - HiW
09 - TUE
10 - WED
11 - THY
12 - FRI
13 - 8pT
14 - SUN
15 - HON
16 - TUE
17 - WED
18 - THY
1% - Fl

ARENA

LONCERT

CONCERY

SFORTS
SFIRTS
SFORTS
CONCERT
CONCERT
CONCERT
CONCERT

SFORTS
+ FANILY §
FeNILY §
FAKILY 5
- FARILY §

- FAMILY §

SFORTS
SFORTS
SFORTS
SFGRTS
SRORTS

CORMCERY

SPORTS
SPORTS

CONCERY

CONCERT
CONCERT
CONCERT
SFIRTS
COMZERT
SFURTS
SFIRTS
CONCERT

SFIRTS
SFURTS

SFORTS
CONCERT

7l

[1a
£1]
IR
[53
[T1

Tl

m
ol
[n3
Lni
il
{nl
{7
€71
1]
vl
[7]

Fromsler fvailability Repord

SRAND RAPING COMPLEX

06717704 Fuped



FAC ROOM.RPT

NV 2004

20 - 86T
21 - ZUN
22 - HON
3% - TUE
24 - KED
25 - THU
24 - FRI
37 - 5AT
26 - SN
29 - HN
30 - TUE
DEC 2004
01 - WED
02 - THU
03 - FRl
04 - GAT
05 - 8GN
04 - MM
07 - TUE
28 - WED
0% - THU
10 - FRI
11 - 5AT
12 - Sy
13 ~ MON
14 - TUE
15 - WED
16 - THU
17 - FRI
18 - ST
i9 - SN
26 - MON
21 ~ TUE
22 - WED
23 - THY
24 - FRT
25 - GAT
26 - SUN
27 - WM
28 - TUE
29 - KED
30 - THU
3 - FRI

JAN 2005

¢1

An
94

- BAT
- SUN

ARENA

arGRTS

CONCERT
CONCERT
CONCERT

CONCERT
CONCERT

SFORTS
SPORTS
SPGRTS
CONCERT
CONCERT
CONCERT

COMCERT
CONCERT
SFORTS
SFORTS
SPURTS
SPORTS

CONCERT

CONCERT
CONCERT
COMCERT

8PIRTS
SFORTS
SPORTS
IN-HOUSE
CONCERT

SFORTS

5FDSTS
SFURTS

SrORTS
SFOIS

Lol
[Tl
ul
7l
f71
[ml

[T
o
n

T
-id

n
{r:

IT3

{cl
fel
81

{71
mn
£s1

{7
7l

1]

In

r
n

{30CAN)
(101 30FH)
(4100FH)

(12:007H)

Fromolar Availabilily Renort

GFAND RAFIDS COMFLEX

06717704 Famed



FAC ROGM.RFT Fromater Awailability Renort 05/17/04  Fooss

GRAND RAPIDS COMPLEX

ARENA
JAN 2005 e et s T ve e et oo weamae e
03 - “iN
04 - TUE
33 - {ED
¢6 - THU + FARILY § [
07 - FRI FaMILY § LI
08 - SAT FAMILY S [B3
09 - SUN FEXILY § [ID
16 - HOW - FAHTLY § 1[I
11 - TUE
12 - VED
13- T
14 - FRI SFARTS 1]
1% - AT SFORTS [T}
16 - SUN
17 - Hld
18 - TUE
19 - ED
206 - TH CoMCERY [T]
21 - Rl SrORTS [T
22 - GAT SFORYS  LT]
23 - SUN
24 - MON
28 - TUE
26 - WER CONCERT [T]
27 - THU EONCERT LTI
B - Ful SFORTS  [8]
8PORTS LTI
29 - GAT 8FGRTS  [8]
SFORTS LT
3¢ - GLN FANILY § (D]
31 - HON SFORTS [T
FER 2003
91 - TUE
¢2 - WED SPORTS LT
03 ~ THU + FAMILY § 71
04 - FRI FAMILY § [T]
05 - SAT FAMILY § I7!
06 - SU FARILY S [T]
07 - ¥ ~ FAMILY § [T!
08 - TUE
0% - kb
10 - THY CONZERT LT
i1 - FRI SPORTS LTI
EFRRTS Y]
12 - GAT FAMILY § T3
13 - SUN FARILY S [T
14 - MON
15 - TUE COMCERT [T
16 - WED SrORTS  C7]
17 - THU
i8 - FRI SPORTS LT
ConCERT L8]
19 - 5AT SFORTS  LT2

CoMCERT IS
20 - 5 SPIRTS [T



FAC.ROGH,RFT

21
22

23 -
24 -

5 -

26 -

27 -

28 -

Ftp 2

003
HOH
TUE
JED
THY
Fal

gaT

SUN
i

MER 2009

01 -
02 -
03 -
04 s
05 -
66 -
07 -
08 -
09 -
10 -
i -
12 -
13 -
14 -
15 -
14 -
17 -
18 -
19 -
20 .-
21 -
2 -
23 -
24 -
75 -
2% -
27 -

2 -
29 -
30 -
3 -

TUE
WED
THU
FRI
SAT
St
HON
TUE
WEL
THY
FRI
SAT
SilN
MaN
TUE
WED
THY
FRI
SAT
SUN
iV
TUE
WEU
THY
FRI
SAT
5Lk

MK
TUE
WED
TAuU

AFR 2003

01 .
02 -
03 -
¢4 ~
G -
06 -
07 -
08 -

¢y -

FRI
SAT
SuM
Ok
TUE
Wel
THY
FRI

SAT

EONCERT
AFORTS
COMCERY
SPORTS
CONCERT
SPORTS

SFORTS
FEMILY §
FAKILY §
FAMILY §
SFIRTS

SFIRTS

SFORTS
SPORTS
ReGERVED

ronTs
SFORTS
SFORTS

+ SFORTS
GPIRTS
SFORTS
SFORTS

~ BPORTS
arORTS

SPORTS
CONCERT

SFORTS
SPURTS

+ FAMILY 5
FEHILY 5
FEMILY §
FAMILY §
FAMILY §
FAKILY §
FAMILY §

[7l
£l
[S81
07l
£s]
(11

{r!
£1l
[ne
mn
(72

[7l

1
i1l
L7l

{1
(4]
L1

[tl
Lol
[l
£l
£el
Ls1

[Tl
[T?

rTt1

[

[nl
[hd
L[]
{1
1
£

Tl

Frosoter fvailabilily Report

GRANDN RAFLDG COWPLEX

06/17/64 Fage!



FAC.ROOM.RPT Fromoler Availahilitly Repori G6/17/G4  Foos!

PRAND RARING COMPLEX

HRENA

N’JR 2005 S
10 - SUi - FAMILY 5 [D3
i1 - Moy

12 - TUE

13 - WED

146 - THU

15 - FRI SFORTS  LT2
16 - SAT 5FORIS LTI
17 - SijN

18 - filN

19 - TUE

2) - WED

21 - THY

22 - FRI

2% - GAT

24 - SUN

25 - WON

26 - TUE

27 ~ WED

28 - THU

29 - FRI

306 - SAT IN-HOUSE L[]
HAY 2005

01 - SN

02 - KON

03 - TUE SFECIAL [D2
G4 - WED

05 - THU

06 - FRI

07 - SAT

0E - SUM

09 - MON

10 - TUE

11 - WED

12 - THU

i3 - FRI

14 - GAT

i5 - SUN

16 - HON

17 - TE

168 - LED

19 - THU

26 - FRI

21 - GAT

22 - SUN

23 - HON

24 - TUE

25 - WED

26 - THY

27 - FRI

28 - SAT

29 ~ Sl

30 - MON

31 - TUE

JUN 2005

01 - WER



FAL . ROCM.RFT

JUN 2063

22
03
04
03
04
G7

¢y

1

12 -

13
i3
i
i
17
i8
19
20
21
22

23

24 B

25
26
7
28
29
30

- THU
- FRI
- 54T
- SUN
- HON
- TUE
KED
- THU
FRI
- SAT
i
~ HON
- TUE
- WED
- THU
- FRT
- GAT
- SN
- HON
- TUE
- YET
- THY
FRI
- SAT
- SUN
- HON
- TUE
- VET
- THU

JUL 2005

01
02
23
G4
09
06
07
08
09
1¢
il

12 -

i3
14
i3
14
17
18
17
20
21
22

a
&

24

e
it

- FRI
- GAT
- SUN
- M
- WUE
- REL
- THU
~ FRl
- GAT
- SIN
- 10N
TUE
- WEY
- THu
- FRI
- GAT
- SUN
- HON
- TUE
- WED
- THU
- FRl
- SAT
- SUN
- HON

CORVENTT L
CONVENTI LI
COWVENTI LI
CONVENTT LR
CONVENTI LI

Frownter fvailabilily Repoit

GRAND RAFIDS COMPLEX

06/17/C8  Fage!



FAC . ROOM.RFT Fromoler Availabilily Repori 0&/17/24  Fagel

GRAND RAFIDS COMPLEX

ARENA
JUL 2005 r T e e @ caormer e | L o drae s ered it a0k b
26 - TUE
27 - WED
28 - T
2% - FRI
30 - CAT

31 - SUN



